4.

5.

9.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

. Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement

. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Number
22401

BIR Tax Identification Code
000491007

. Address of principal office

16TH FLOOR CITIBANK TOWER, 8741 PASEO DE ROXAS MAKATI CITY
Postal Code
1227

. Registrant's telephone number, including area code

8314479

. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

CR06729-2018

03 DECEMBER 2018, METROPOLITAN CLUB INC. ESTRELLA COR. AMAPOLA STS.

GUADALUPE VIEJO, MAKATI CITY

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders

Nov 9, 2018

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor
N/A

Address and Telephone No.
N/A

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding



700,298,616

Common
Preferred 14,366,260
13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE/ COMMON SHARES

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to

the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
PRIM

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Dec 3, 2018

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) ANNUAL

Time 9:30 A.M

Venue The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City
Record Date Oct 26, 2018

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books

Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

NONE

Filed on behalf by:



Name Joanna Manzano
Designation Junior Compliance Officer
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-5

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1, Check the appropriate box:

[ ¥ ] Preliminary Information Statement

SECURITIES AND EXCHAN
COMMISSION =

T e, e
Z Mame of Registrant as specified in its charter; PRIME MEDIA HOLDING DI 'ﬂ?‘ R Tﬂ ‘L_\
OCT 17 2008 | l f
'_,,\...'-'I-.E'_-_'.rz...*. i tg

|
ULATIO
Wl 5o

| ] Definitive Information Statement

T Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organizatio
Metro Manila, Philippines
M A

4, SEC |dentification Number: Reg. No. 22401 BY.
5. BIR. Tax Identification Code: TIN 000-491-007
6. Address of principal office:
16F Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City Postal Code 1226
i Registrant's telephone number, including area code, Tel. Nos.: (#32) B31-4479
8 Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

03 December 2018 (Monday) at 9:30 am at The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner
Amapola 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City

9, Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders

9 November 2018 (Friday)
10, In case of Proxy Solicitations

MName of the Person Filing the Statement/ Solicitor: NA
Address and Telephone Moo N

1. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
{information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants).

Title of Each Class Mumber of Shares of Common Stock
Cutstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Commaon Shares 700,298,616
Preferred Shares 14,366,260

' Reported by the stock transfer agent as of 30 September 2018.
12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] No[ ]
If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange. Common Shares
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PRIME MED|A HOLDINGS, INC.

HOTICE OF ANMUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To All Stockholders:

Please be advised that PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. will hold its Annual Shareholders’
Meeting an 03 December 2018 (Monday), 9:30 am at The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner
Amapola 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, with the following agenda:

1, Call to Order

2. Proof of Motice and Certification of Guorum

3. Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

4. Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
5. Ratification of Management’s Act

6. Authority to Enter into a Management Agreement with RYM Business Management
Carp.

7. Election of Directors

B. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Other Matters

1. Adjournment

The Board of Directars has fixed the close of business on the 26 October 2018 as the record
date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual
Stockhoiders’ Meeting.

All proxies must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary on or before 22 November 2018,
5:00 p.m. at the following address:

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
cfo Marcventures
A" Flr, Citibank Center
8741 Pasen de Roxas, Makati City
Attention: Diane Madelyn C. Ching

WVery truly yours,

Atty, Christopher Sam Salvador
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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SAMPLE PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS IMC. (the “Company™] hereby appoints

ar in his/her/its absence, the Chairman of the meeting, as attarney-in-fact

and proxy, to represent and vote all the shares registered in his/her/its name at the annual meeting of the
stockholders of the Company scheduled en 03 December 2018, 3:30 am at the The Metropolitan Club Inc.,
Estrella corner Amapala Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, and any of its adjournment{s), as fully as the
undersigned can do if present and voting in person, ratifying all action taken an matters that may properly come
before such meeting or ils adjournment(s). The undersigned directs the prowy to vote on the agenda items which
have been expressly indicated with “X" below,

PROPOSAL

ACTION

FOR

AGAINST ABSTAIMN

1. Approval of Minutes of the
previous meeting

2. Approval of Management Report
and Audited Financial
statements

3. Ratification of Management's
ACEs

4. Authority to Enter into a
Management Agreement with
R Business Management
corp,

5. Election of Directars:

FOR ALL

The nominees are;

Manalito A, Manalo
Juan Victor 5, Valdez
Rolando 5. Santos
Bernadeth &, Lim
Diane Madelyn C, Ching

Mominees  for  independent
directors:

Francisco L. Layug 111
Jahnny . Aruego, Jr,

Instruction: To withhold suthority fo
vate for any nominee, please mark
“Abstoin® box and (ist the namefst
under.

AGAINST ALL | ABSTAIN FOR FULL
DISCRETICN
__OF PROXY |

A.  Election of Reyes Tacandong &
Co. as external auditor

7. Other Matters

Signed this day of

PRINTED MAME OF THE 5TOCKHOLDER

2018 at

SIGHATURE OF THE
STOCKHOLDER/ AUTHORIZED
REPRESEMTATIVE

This proxy must be acknowledged before a nolary public and must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary
on or before 22 November 2018, 5:00 p.m. The stockholder giving a prosy has the power to revake iU either in an
instrurment in writing duly presented for recording with the Corporate Secretary at least five {5) days prior to the
meating or by personal attendance at the stockholders' meeting. For corparations, the proxy must be accompanied by
a Secretary’s Certificate authorizing an authorized representative to represent the corporation in the meeting,
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SAMPLE SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

b, of legal age, with address at . , being
the Corporate Secretary of , do hereby certify that:
o In the regular/special meeting of the Board aof Directors of the Corporation held on
201 at the , the following resolution was
approved;
"RESOLYED, that the Board of Directors of {the
"Corporation”) hereby authorize, andfor _to
represent the Corporation and to vote all of the Corporation’s shares
registerad in the books of the PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. (PRIM) at any
annual stockholders' meeting of PRIM, particularly, the annual
stockholders” meeting to be held on , and any
adjournments or postponements thereof,
"RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Board of Directors aof the Corporation
authorize and{ or to sign, execute and deliver
nominations and proxies in relation to said annual stockholders’ meeting
of PRIM.™
2. This resolution has not been suspended, revoked nor amended.
{date of execution), iplace of execution).
f.:.i_:urpurate Secretary
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORNM to before me on at Makati, Metro Manila, affiant
exhibiting to me his/her valid proof of identification issued at on
Doc. No.
Fage Mo,
Book No.,

Series of 2018,
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INFORMATION STATEMEMT AMD MANAGEMENT REPORT
INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE MOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY
However, if you cannot attend and you wish to send a representative/proxy, please send your proxy
letter to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before 22 Movember 2018, 5:00 p.m., a sample
of which is attached to this report. On the day of the annual stockholders’ meeting on 03 December
2018, your representative should bring the proxy letter and present valid proof of identification (e.g.
passport, driver's license, company |0 or TIN card).

A, GENMERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, Time and Place of Annual Meeting of Security Holders

The Annual Meeting of the stockhalders of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. will be held on 03 December
2018, 9:30 The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner Amapola 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati
City.

The mailing address of the Company is at c/o Marcventures, 4'" Flr. Citibank Center Bldg, Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City. Please address the letters to the corporate secretary of the Company, Diang
Mmadelyn C. Ching.

This Information Statement will be first sent or given to security holders on or around the 9 November
2018.

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There is no proposed corporate action or matter to be taken up at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting
that will give rise to the exercise of appraisal right by the dissenting stockholders.

The Corporation Code limits the exercise of the appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder to the
following instances:

a. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
respect superior to those of cutstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the
term of corporate existence (Section 81);

b. Incase of the sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets {Section 81);

c. In case of merger or consolidation (Section 813;
d. In case of investments in another corporation, business or purpose (Section 42).

The appraisal right may be exercised by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty
{30} days after the date on which the vote was taken far payment of the fair value of his shares;
provided, that failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the
appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the corporation shall
pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair
value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation
or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60} days from the date the corporatc action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall
be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the two thus chasen. The
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findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the
corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made; Provided, That no payment shall be
made to any dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its
books to cover such payment; and Provided, further, That upon payment by the corporation of the
agreed or awarded price, the stockhalders shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

The appraisal right shall be exercised in accordance with Title X of the Corporation Code,

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

Mo director or officer of the Company or any nominee for election as director of the Company or any
associate of the foregoing, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or
otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon, other than election to office as director of the Company.
None of the officers or directors or any of their associates has any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, in any of the matters to be acted upon in the stockholders’ meeting.

Mone of the directors of the Company has informed the Company that he intends to oppose any action
to be taken by the Company at the stockholders’ meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4, Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of 30 September 2018, the following shares of common and preferred stock of the Company were
outstanding:

Humber of
Class Dutstanding Shares
Common 700,298,616
Preferred
Series A 14,366,260
Series B Mil

As of 30 September 2018, the foreign equity ownership on a per class basis is as follows:

Number of
Class Outstanding Shares
Common 1,031,360
Preferred 109,650

All registered owners of the Company's common stock at the close of business on 26 October 2018
will be entitled to notice and vote at its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 03 December 2018.

Each common share is entitled to one (1) vote on all matters to be taken up during the Annual Meeting
except in the case of electing directors where one (1) share is entitled to Seven (7) votes, i.e. each
share is entitled to as many votes as there are Board seats to be filled up.

Each stockholder is entitled to cumulate his votes and cast the same in favor of one or several
nominees of his choice in such proportion as he shall deem fit, provided that, the total votes cast do
not exceed the number of his shares multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. There is
no condition precedent to the exercise by the stockholders of their cumulative voting right.

Security Ownership of Persons Owning More Than 5% of the Company’s Outstanding Common
Stock
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As of 30 September 2048, the Company knows of no one who is directly or indirectly the record or
beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%} of the Company's capital stock except as set forth

bielow:
| Type of HName and HName and Citizenship WName of No. of Percent
Class address of address of Beneficial Shares Held | of class
record beneficial Owner &
owner and owner and Relationship
relationship relationship with Record
with Issuer  with Issuer o . Owner i
Common  PCD Mominee  RYM Business | Filipino R¥M  beneficial
Corporation | Management owner  of  the | 463,555,085 | 66.20%
{Registered Caorp./ shares.
Owner in the | 106 Paseo de
Books of the | Roxas Ave,
Transfer Makati City
Agent) Stockholder -
Mairete  Asset | Filipino Mairete  Asset
Holdings, Inc. Holdings, Inc. 77,178,901 1%
164 Floor is beneficial
Citibank Tower, owner  of  the
Paseo de Roxas, shares.
Makati
Stockhalder |
Caulfield Filiping Caulfield
Heights, Inc. Heights, Inc. is | 35,000,000 | 5%
& Ozamis 5t | the beneficial
Alabang  Hills, owner of the
Muntinlupa City shares,
 Stockholder |

RYM Business Management Carp. and Mairete Asset Holdings Inc. has autharized and/aor appointed by
way of proxy, the Chairman of the Board of Prime Media Holdings Inc. to represent and vote the its
shares in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Caulfield Heights Inc. has authorized and/or appointed
by way of proxy, Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr, or its duly authorized representative to attend and vote an

its hehalf.

Security Ownership of Management as of 30 September 2018

Amount and
Type of Name and Address of nature of Citizenshi Percent
Class Owner Beneficial 5 of class
_ ownership
Commaon Manalite Manalo 1 Filiping 0.0%
= Direct
Comman Rolando 5. Santos 1000 Filiping 0.0%
_ - Direct .
Comman Bernadeth A. Lim 1 Filipino 0.0%
| | Direct
Commaon Diane Madelyn Ching 1000 Filipiri 0.0%
- Direct ) i
Commaon Juan Yictor 5, Valdez 1 Filipina 0.0%
Direct s
Comman Johnny . Aruego Jr. 1 Filipino
; 0.0%
Direct .
Comman Francisco L. Layueg |l 1 Filipino
i 0.0%
U | Direct |
Aggregate for above named
officers and directors 2,005
L |
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Voting Trust Halders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of the existence of persons holding five percent (5%) ar more of the
Company’s shares of commaon stock under a voting trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control
There was na changes in control of the management af the Corporation.

The Company in its disclosure dated December 18, 2015, informed that RYM Business Management
Corporation has informed Prime Media Holdings Inc. {the Corporation) that it has acquired 93,685,410
and 218,099,360 common shares owned by Meo Oracle Holdings, Inc. and Metro Tagaytay Land
Company Inc., respectively, in the Corporation or a total of Three Hundred Eleven Million Seven
Hundred Eighty Four Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy (311,784,770 common shares equivalent to
44.6% during the foreclosure sales evidenced by the Certificates of Sale dated 18 December 2015 and
18 December 2015, being the creditor and highest bidder for the aforementioned shares at the bid
price of PhP 74544 642.00 and PhP 57,051,743.40, respectively, or a total price of
PRP131,596,385.47.

subsequently, on June 1, 2016, supplement to the disclosure dated 21 December 2015, the Company
disclosed that the 93,685,410 shares of Neo Oracle Holdings Inc. and 218,099,360 shares of Metro
Tagaytay Land Company Inc. in Prime Media Holdings Inc. were transferred to RYM Business
Management Corp. (RYM) through a special block sale on 31 May 2016 at the price of PhP 0.7957 and
PhP 0.2616 per share, respectively, to implement the foreclosure sales made in December 2015,

As a result, RYM became the owner of 610,733,986 shares or B7.38% of the Company.

The aforementionad transaction is exempt from the Tender Offer rule as provided in Section 19.3.1.3
of the Securities Regulation Caode,

On June 15, 2016, RYM disclosed thru SEC Form 23-B that it has sold a total of 147,178,901 shares:
thus, leaving the Company with 463,555,085 shares ar 66, 20%.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers
Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship, periods of service of the incumbent directors of the
Company as of September 30, 2018;

| Period during which
Hame Age Citizenship individual has served as such

[ Manolito A. Manalo 49 Filipino day 2013 to the present
Juan Victor 5. Valdez 45 Filipino May 2013 to the present
Bernadeth A. Lim - Filipino May 2013 to the present
Diane Madelyn C. Ching 36 Filiping Dctober 2013 up to the present |
Rolando 5. Santos ~ Bh Filiping August 2017 to the present
Johnny . Aruego 48 Filipina May 2013 to the present

iIndependent Director) |
Francisco L. Layug 11| [ Filipino
(independent director) =

December 2017 to the present

The business experience of each of the incumbent directors of the Company for the last five (5) years
is as follows:

Manolito A. Manalo was elected as President and Director in May 2013, He is the co-founder and
managing partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm, He is a Director of Panalpina World Transport
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{Phils.], Inc.. He also sits as Director and Corporate Secretary in Kajima Philippines Inc. He began his
law practice as an associate in Leavillo C. Agustin Law Offices from 1995 to 1996 and Britanico
Consunji and sarmiento from 1996 to 1997, He later headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from
1997 to 1999, He is also the resident agent of Air Seoul and Chailease Finance Co. Ltd from 2017 to
present, and of Turkish Airlines from 2014 to 2017.

Bernadeth A, Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013. She is a junior partner af
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is the President and a director of Morrison Express Philippines
Corp from January 2017 to present. She is also a director and corporate secretary of Solen Innovations
Holdings Inc. from November 2016 to Present. She is a directar Imoney Comparison Philippines, Inc.
from June 2015 to present. She is also a director and the corporate secretary of Bounce Electronic
Music Production and DJ S5chool from October 2014 to Present and Tone Def Music Group, Inc. fram
June 2014 to present. She is a directar and the resident agent of Proline AG Services, Inc. She is the
resident agent of New Mortheast Electric Group High Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd from November
2017 to May 2018 and of ¥ Air Corporation from October 2016 to November 2016, She is a Director
and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Kajima Philippines Incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technolosy
Solutions Inc., and Anawhan Realty Inc. She also sits as a Director in Ayannah Information Solutions
Inc. and Home Catalogue Shopping, Inc.

Juan Yictor 5. Yaldez was elected as Director in May 201 3. He is a junior partner of Ocampo and
Manalo Law Firm. He is a director, Vice-President for Legal Affairs and Corporate Secretary of PATTS
College of Aeronautics, one of the country’s leading aeronautic schools. He also sits as director in
Segundo Travel & Tours Inc., Hafti Tours Inc., and Kajima Philippines Incorporated.

Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected as Director in October 2013, She concurrently serves as
Carporate Secretary of the Company. She likewise serves as Corporate Secretary of Bright Kindle
Resources B Investments Inc, (formerly Bankard Inc.}, Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.,
and Asian Appraisal Co. Inc. She is likewise the General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
Marcyentures Holdings Inc. Atty. Ching was previously an associate of Ocampa B Manalo Law Firm
from March 2010 to June 2013,

Rolando 5. Santos was elected as Director in August 2017, He was elected as Assistant Treasurer in
October 2013, He serves as Vice President and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources R Investments
Inc, and as Treasurer of Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.
He was previously the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Equitable PCl Bank which
was eventually acquired by BDO from 2001 to 2013,

Francisco L, Layug lll is the President of Rotary Club of Pasay. He was the President of Electronic
security System Corp. {ESS5COR) from 1992-2015. He is currently a Consultant of ESSCOR.

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013, He is a partner in Aruego
Bite and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources Corporation. He is the Corporate
secretary and Legal Counsel for Agility, Inc. and A, V., Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He
is a Legal Cansultant of Loranzana Food Corporation, Mational Steel Corporation and Margarita Land
and Management Co., Inc. He is the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon,
Inc., Pet Plans, Inc., Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. and All Asia Capital and Trust Corporation. He
is an assistant liquidator of East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corporation.

Officers

As of September 30, 2018, the following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of
service of the incumbent officers of the Company:

_ Period during which
Mame Age Paosition Citizenship | individual has served as
_ = : | : ] such -
Manolito A. Manalo | 49  President & CEQ _ Filipina May 2013 up to present
Bernadeth A, Lim 38 Vice President  Filipino May 2013 to present
Diane Madelyn C. Ching | 35  Corporate Secretary, Filiping August 2017 up to the
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Compliance Officer and present
Data Privacy Officer*

Rolando 5. Santos 67 Treasurer Filiping | October 2013 up to

; - | present
Christopher Sam 5. Asst, Corporate Filiping May 2014 up to present
Salvador 35 Secretary/ Corporate

Information Officer

*appointed on 28 August 2018

Christopher 5am 5. Salvador was initially appointed as Corporate Information Officer in 2014 and on
August 22, 2017, he was elected Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is an associate af
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is the Corporate Secretary of Timebound Trading, Inc. and Assistant
Caorporate Secretary for AIrSWIFT Transport, Inc. (formerly Island Transvayager, Inc.) and Bacuit
Airholdings, Inc,

Homination Committee and Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The Mominations Committee has screened the following nominees for election or re-election on 03
December 2018. The Mominations Committee determined that the candidates possess all the
qualifications and none the disqualifications as director or independent directar,

Mominees for Reqular Directors

Manolito A. Manalo
Juan Victor 5, Valdez
Bernadeth A, Lim
Diane Madelyn C. Ching
Rolando 5. Santos

Mominees for Independent Director

Johnny Y. Aruego
Francisca L. Layug |1

Please refer to the above biographical details of current directors that have been renominated.

All nominations for regular and independent director have been reviewed and approved by the
Company's Nomination and Compensation Committee,

The independent directors were both nominated by Manolito A. Manalo. The nominator is not related
to the persans he has nominated for independent directors.

The procedure and selection of the independent. directors were made in accordance with Section 38
of the Code and the Campany’s By-laws. In compliance with the provisions of Rule 38 of the Amended
Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code, the Company's By-laws was
amended on 30 September 2004.

The gualifications of all nominated directors including the nominated independent directors have
been pre-screened in accordance with the rules of the Company. Only the nominees whose names
appear on the Final List of Candidates are eligible for election as directors (independent or
atherwise). No other nominations were entertained after the preparation of the Final List of
Candidates and no further nominations shall be entertained or allowed during the annual
stockholders' meeting.

The Company undertakes to submit the updated Certifications of Qualification for the Independent
Directors within 30 days from their election in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular Mo 5 Series
of 2017.

The nomination and election of independent director shall be in accordance with Section 38, as
amended of Republic Act 8799 or the Securities Regulation Code and article Il, Section 3 of the
Company's By-Laws as amended by the Board of Directors on September 29, 2004 and the
Stockholders on September 30, 2004.
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The Momination Committee is composed of Francisco L. Layug Il as Chairman, and Juan Victor 5,
Valdez and Diane Madelyn C. Ching as members.

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular Mo, 4 Series of 2017, both Independent Directors (ID)
have not exceeded the maximum cumulative term of nine (%) years, Furthermore, the Company
understands that after a term of (9) years, the independent director shall be perpetually barred from
re-election as such in the same company, but may continue to qualify as a non-independent director,
At the instance that a company wants to retain an independent director who has served for nine (9)
years, the Board should provide meritorious justification/s and seek shareholders' approval during
the annual shareholders' meeting; and Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year is from 2012,

Period in Which Directors and Executive Officers Should Serve
The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of one (1) year.
Term of Office of a Director

The seven (7} directars shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stockholders owning
majority of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one {1) year and shall serve until the election
and qualification of their successors.

Any vacancy in the board of directors other than removal or expiration of term may be filled by a
majority vote of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for that purpose if they still
constitute a gquorum, and the director or directors so chosen shall serve for the unexpired term.

Significant Employees

The business of the Company is not highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel, There
is no employee who, while not being an executive officer, is expected by the Company to make a
significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships either by consanguinity or affinity up to the fourth civil degree
amaong directors, executive officers and nominees for election as directors,

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware that any one of the incumbent directors and officers and persons
nominated to become director!s and officer/s has been the subject of a bankruptcy petition or a
conviction by final judement in criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations
and other minor affenses, or has been by judement or decree found to have violated securities or
commaodities law and enjoined from engaging in any business, securities, commadities or banking
activities for the past five (5) years until the date of this Information Sheet.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Due from RYM decreased significantly by P27.58 million ar equivalent to 68.95% pertains to the
collection on advances made to RYM.

RYM advanced to the Company the amount of PRP 2.0 million to the Corporation for in order to allow
the Company to pay the compromise settlement with BSP, the payment of BSP Compromise fee which
resulted in increase to Due to Related party accounts.

Resignation/Disagreement
There was no resignation by any director or officer for year 2018,
Maonica isabelle |. Villanueva resigned as Corporate Secretary on 22 August 2017. Her resignation is

not due to any disagreement with the Company on any matter relating ta the Campany 's operations,
palicies or practices.
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Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The aggredate compensation paid in 2015, 2016 and 2017 estimated to be paid in 2018, {1} to the
Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company, as a group;
and (2) to all key officers, other officers, and directors as a group, is set out below:

Names Position Year Salary Bonus Others
Manolito 4. Manale | Chairman &
President
Bernadeth A, Lim Vice President
Juan Victor Valdez B -
Rolando S. Santos | Treasurer |
Diane Madelyn C. | Corporate Secretary
Ching
Aggregate for above 2015 0 o 22,222
narred 2016 o o 25,000
2017 i ] 30,000
All Directors and -
Officers as a group 2015 o 0 22,778
unnamed 2016 o ) 30,000
2017 a 0 25,000
2018(est}) 70,000

Except for nominal per diem amounting to P10,000,.00 for attending board meetings and PhP
5,000.00 for attending committee meetings, there are no standard arrangements by which Directars
are compensated directly or indirectly.

Iltemn 7. Independent Public Accountants

a)

c)

Independent Public Accountants, Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC) will stand for re-election
as the Corporation’s external auditars far the year Z0ME which shall be subject to
shareholders' approval during the Annual Meeting in compliance with SRC Rule 68,
Paragraph 3(b}(iv]) which pravides that the external auditor should be rotated every five
i3} years ar earlier or the handling partner shall be changed.

RTC was first elected as the Company’s Independent Public Accountant in December
2014, Representatives of RTC will be present during the annual meeting and will be given
the epportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to
respond to appropriate questions if needed. There was no event where RTC and the
Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.
Except as stated in the report of independent auditors, the Corporation has no
disagreements with its auditors,

For the audit of the Company's Annual financial statements and services provided in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounts
to be billed or already billed excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses (OPE) by RTC
amounts/amounted to 330,000 and P330,000 for 2017 and 2016 respectively.

The 2017 audit of the Company is in compliance with Rule 68, paragraph (31{b){ix) of the Amended
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, which provides that the external auditor should be rotated, or
the handling partner changed, every five {5) years or earlier and that a two-year cooling off period
shauld be observed in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual auditor,
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At present, RTC account partner handling the Corporation is Belinda B. Fernando and she has been
the handling partner since 2014, She is due for rotation in 2019, A two year cooling off period shall
be observed in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual.

The Company created an Audit Committee composed of the following members: Bernadeth 4. Lim,
Juan Yictor 5. Valdez and Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr (Chairman). As provided for in its charter, the
objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing the financial reporting process, the system of internal control, risk
management, governance processes, the audit process and the company's process for manitoring
compliance with laws and regulations and its own code of business conduct.

Item 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

Mo action is proposed to be taken during the stockholders' meeting with regard to any bonus, profit
sharing, pension/retirement plan, granting of any extension of options, warrants or rights to purchase
any securities,

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHAMNGE OF SECURITIES

Mo matter will be taken up involving any issuance or exchange of securities.
ltem 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

There is nothing to disclose with respect to authorization or issuance of securities.

Item 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Pursuant to the previous approvals af the Board of Directors and Stockholders of the Campany
sometime in the year 1997 which was duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission and
duly disclosed to the Exchandge, the Company issued 1,289,279 additional shares on May 30, 2016
arising from the conversion af 32,231,970 preferred shares at the conversion rate of 25 preferred
shares to 1 common share.

As of September 30, 2018, Change(s) in Mumber of Issued and Qutstanding Shares are as follows:

Before After
Comman Shares/ PRIM {Foreign) 1,217 B9 1,296,290
Comman Shares/ PRIM (Local) 699,002,326 699,002,326
Total 700,220,185 700,298,616
Preferred Shares/ PRIM (Foreign) 109,650 109,650
Preferred Shares! PRIM (Local) 16,217,380 14,256,610
Taotal 16,327,030 14,366,260

D. OTHER MATTERS
Item 15, ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS & OTHER PROPOSED ACTION/S

The following matters shall be submitted to the vote of stockholders of the Company during the
stockholders’ meeting.

. Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting
2. Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
3. Ratification of Management's Act
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4. Authority to Enter into a Management Agreement with RYM Business Management
Corparation

3. Election of Directors

6. Appointment of External Auditor

Action is to be taken on the approval of the Minutes of the previous stockholders' meeting. The
Summary af the minutes therefor is provided below:

1. The stockholders approved the minutes of the meeting of the last Annual General Meeting of
the stockholders held last 25 October 2016.

2. The stockholders approved the Management/President's Report and the Annual Report for
the year 2016 including the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31
December 2016,

3. The steckholders ratified all acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the previous
year up to even date.

4. The stockholders approve and ratified the executed of a management agreement between
the Corporation and RYM Business Management Corporation.

5. The stockholders elected the following as directars of the Corporation to serve for the period
2017-2018 and until their successors shall have been duly elected as qualified, to wit:

Manolito A. Manalo

Juan Victor S. Valdez

Bernadeth A, Lim

Rolando S, Santos

Diane Madelyn C. Ching

Johnny ¥. Aruego, Jr. as independent directar
Francisco Layug as independent directar

m e an o

6. The stockholders approved the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., as the External
Auditor of the Corporation for the ensuing year,

Summary of the Minutes of the Board Meetings for the year 2018 for ratification of
management’s actions,

Meetings of the Board of Directars were held on the following dates:

August 28, 2018;
September 10, 2018,

a. March 14, 2018;
b. April 20, 2018;
c. May 28, 2018 -
d. July 6, 2018;

e,

f.

At these meetings, operational and financial reports were discussed. In addition, the following
matters were taken up;

1. March 14, 2018
Appointment of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching and/or Andres Padernal and Paras Law
Offices or any of its lawyers, to appear as counsel for the Corparation in relation to the
case against Cahirup Tembrevilla-Armogenia and South Sea Resart Hotel Inc.

2. April 20, 2018
- Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ending December 31, 2017

3. May 28, 2018
- Grant of Authority to file pleading in relation to Fortunata vs. PDCP case and the
Authaority to Atty. Noel Allen R. Bose or any lawyers of the VC Bose Law Firm to appear
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as counsel for the Corporation regarding Civil Case Mo, T-2185, pending before the Branch
15 of the Regional Trial Court of the Tabaco City Albay.

4. July 6, 2018
- Approval of the Corporation to enter into a Compromise Agreement with Bangko Sentral
ni Pilipinas.
- Appointment of Rolando S, Santos, Atty. Manolito A. Manalo, Diane Madelyn C. Ching and
any of the lawyers of Ching Law Office as Counsel for the Corporation in relation to the
Case entitled Bulaong Enterprises Inc. vs First e-Bank Caorporation with Civil Case Mo,
6784 pending before Branch 22, Regional Trial Court of General Santos City,

5. August 28, 2018
- Approval of the Sale of the Corporation's Property in Legaspi City.
Appointment of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching as Data Privacy Officer
- Change of Signataries in relation to the accounts maintained by the Corporation in BDO
Unibank, Inc. (Philam Tower-Valero Branch) located in City of Makati.

6. September 20, 2018
Holding of Annual Stockholder's Meeting

Action will also be taken for the Company to enter into a Management Agreement with RYM
Business Management Corporation for a period of up to 5 years for at least PhP 5M per annum,
subject to madification by the Board of Directars.

Item 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

All corporate actions to be taken up at the annual stockholders’ meeting will be submitted to the
stockholders of the Registrant for their approval in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporation Code.

Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Motice and Quarum,
Item 17. Voting Procedures

In the election of directors, the seven {7} nominees garnering the highest number of votes will be
clected as members of the board of directors, provided that there shall always be at least two (2)

members who are independent directors.

For all other matters proposed to be acted upon, the affirmative vote of the shareholders
representing a majority of the outstanding commen capital stock will be needed for approval.

Manner of Yoting

Each common share entitles the person in whose name it is registered in the books of the Company
to one vote with respect to all matters to be taken up during the annual meeting of stockholders.

In the election of directors, each stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persans as
there are directors to be elected or may cumulate said shares and give one nominee as many votes
as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his share shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle amaong as many nominees as he shall see fit, provided, that
the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied
by the number of directors to be elected.

Voting Requirements

{a) With respect to the election of directors, candidates who received the highest number of
votes shall be declared elected as directors of the Company.
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{b) All other matters presented for approval of the stockholders of the Company require the
affirmative vote of the stockholders representing a majority of the outstanding stock of the
Company

Method by which Votes will be Counted

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present or represented at the meeting and
entitled to vote thereat, voting need not be by ballot and will be done by show of hands.

The: Corporate Secretary will be responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares entitled
to vote owned by the stockholders who are present ar represented by proxies at the Annual Meeting
of the Stockholders.

MANAGEMENT REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

MANAGEMENT REPORT

I. Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (PRIM) for the years ended as of
December 31, 2017 are attached to this report.

Il. Information on Independent Accountants and other Related Matters

The Company's financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 have been
audited by Reyes Tacandong &Co. ("RTC"), independent auditors, as stated in their reports
appearing herein,

Ms. Belinda B. Fernando is the Company's current audit partner. We have not had any
disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with our current external auditors for the
periods or any subsequent interim period,

There were no disagreements with RTC on any matter of accounting and financial disclosure,

The following table sets out the ageregate fees incurred for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 for professional services rendered by RTC:

- 2016
Audit and Audit-Related Services P330,000 #3130,000

I, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis is based on the audited financial statements as at December
31, 217 and 2016, prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {PFRS)
and accompanying Motes to the Financial Statements and should be read in conjunction with the
audited consalidated financial statements,

Summary Financial Information
The Financial Statements as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2015 are hereto attached,

The following table sets forth the summary financial information for the years ended December
31, 217 and 2014:
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Summary of Income Statement

Years Ended December 31

2n7 2016 2015
INCOME R2,201,162 B2,9731,625 FZ,011,824
EXPENSES 30,105,614 28,653,740 32,674,375
INCOME (LOS5) BEFORE TAX (27,904,452) {25,680,115) {30,662 ,551)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 531,234 590,871 36,060
NET INCOME (LO55) (28,435,686) (26,270,986) (30,698.611)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS) 60,000 (10,000) 100,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (R28,375,6B6) (P26,280,986)  (P30,598,611)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE ~ (RO.0O4)  (RO.04) {PO.06)
Summary of Balance Sheet

December 31
- 2017 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets RB16,802,522 B48,027,135
Noncurrent Assets 71,714,190 68,432,200

BBE,516,712

RB116,459,335

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities B193,071,645 R193,160,882
Noncurrent Liability 9,556,800 9,034,500

202,628,445 202,195,382
Equity {114,111,733)  (85,736,047)

R88,516,712

B116,459,335

Summary of net cash flows

Years Ended December 31

2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 595,268 (R70,523,055) (Ri6, 743,094
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {1,577,000) - (85,800
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - - -
NWET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (981,732) (70,523,055) (36,828,894}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING

OF YEAR 2,701,963 73,225,018 110,053,912
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR 1,720,231 B2,701,963  F73,225,018
NONCASH FIMANCING ACTIVITY
Unpaid portion of acquisition cast of AFS
_ financial assets R- P— P—
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2017 vs. 2016

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P 27.78 Million or equivalent to 23.85% from P 116.43
million in 2016 to 88.68 million in 2017. The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

Cash decreased significantly from P2.70 million as of December 31, 2016 to P1.72 million as
of December 31, 2017, a decrease of P0.97 million or equivalent to 36.06% pertains to the
payment of administrative expenses.

Receivable decreased by P2.07 million or equivalent to 45.80% due to the set up of
allowance for doubtful accounts on cash advances.

Other current assets decreased due to the reversal of interest receivable amounting to

PO, 69 million or equivalent Lo 74,07%,

Due from Parent Company decreased significantly by P27.58 million or equivalent to 68.95%
pertains to the collection on advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation.
Equipment increase pertains to purchase of Toyota Hilux amounting to P1.58 million.
Liabilities increased by P0.48 million or equivalent to 6.27% mainly due to increase in
deferred tax liability.

The company incurred a net loss of P28.32 million in 2007 which resulted to decrease in the
total stockholder's equity,

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P28.32 million in 2017, P2.08 million or equivalent to 7.92%
higher as compared to 2016 reported net loss of P26.26 million. The significant changes were
mainly due to the following:

Recovery of accounts written-off decreased by P0O.58 million or 77.33% due to lower
collection this year.

Provisions for impairment loss increased by P2.13 million due to set up of allowance far
doubtful accounts on cash advances made to the previously engaged processing the transfer
and registrations.

Professional fees decreased by P1.11 million or equivalent to 38.14% due to lower legal fees
in 2017

Outside services increased from P1.09 million in2016 to P1.32 million in 2017, P0.23 million
ar equivalent to 21.10% primarily due to engagement of lawyers to attend to litigation
cases in which the Company is involved,

Taxes and licenses decreased from PO.A5 million in 2016 to PO.46 million in 2017, 29.23% in
due payment of Documentary stamp tax on 2016,

Rent decreased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 29.63% due to lower association dues in
2m7

salaries and allowance decreased by P0.13 million or equivalent to 100.00% due to paid
allowance on contractual employees in 2016 and none in 2017.

Depreciation expense increased by PO.10 million for the transportation equipment,

Other expenses increased by P55 million due to recognize of other miscellaneaus expense
from interest receivable.,

2016 vs. 2015

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P30.44 Mmillion or equivalent to 20.99% fram P145,00
Million in 2015 to P114.56 Million in 2016, The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

= Cash decreased significantly from ®73.22 million as of December 31, M5 to
P2.70 million as of December 31, 2016, a decrease of P70.52 million or equivalent to 96.31%
pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made ta RYM Business
Management Corporation. The advances were subsequently collected in 2017,
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= Due from Parent Company increased significantly by P40.00 million or equivalent to 100.00%
pertains to the advances made to RYM Business Management Corparation.

= The company incurred a net loss of P27.61 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in the total
stockholder's equity,

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P27.60 million in 2016, P3.10 million ar equivalent ta 10.10%
lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of P30.70 million. The significant changes were mainly
due to the following:

= Qutside services decreased from P2Z.09million in 2015 to P1.09 million in 2016,
P1.00 million or equivalent to 47.85% decrease primarily due to the payment of appraisal fee for
the appraisal on the properties of the Company in 2015,

¢« Taxes and licenses decreased from P1.57 million in 2015 to PO.65 million in 2016, 57.96% in due
to payment of real property tax.

= Rent decreased by P0.98 million or equivalent to 78.40% due to termination af rental contract
for office space used in 2015,

+ Other expenses decreased by P1.15 million due to last year's loss on litigation on the “China
Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now Prime Media
Holdings, Inc.)”, under Civil Case No, 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.

Key Performance Indicators

2015 2016 2017
Return on Asset (%) (0.24%) 0.21% | (0.27%)

Return an Equity (%) (0.03%) | (0.03%) | 0.27%

1/ Return on assets (ROA) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to  average
assets.

2/ Return on equity {ROE) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to
average equity.

I¥Y. Brief Description of the General Mature and Scope of the Business
The Company was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) an February 6, 1963,

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963, On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company’s articles of incorporation, changing its primary
purpose from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media
industry. On March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extensian af the Company's corporate life for
another 50 years,

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company’s
shares of stock. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed,

On September 12, 2002, the Company's assets and liabilities arising from its development bank
operations were transferred to and assumed by Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc, (BDO) and Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corparation (PDICY under a Memorandum of Asreement (MOA). As at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain
mainly to the estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets wo
BDO/PDIC and other related liabilities (see Mote 9),

As at December 31, 2015, the Company's shareholders are RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM

or Parent Company) (43%), Metro Tagaytay Land Company, Inc. (MTLCI) (31%) and Neo Oracle

Haoldings, Inc. (NOHI} (13%). In 2016, RYM acquired the comman stock owned by MTLCI and NOHI
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but disposed of 21% of its ownership shares. As at December 31, 2016, R¥YM effectively owns 66%
of the Company’s common stock.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were approved and authorized for issuance by the
Board of Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2017,

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring for a new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its development bank operation to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of R85.7 million and
R59.5 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operations. The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of B34.2 million into commaon stock in 2016 and
converted their advances of P800.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused capital
aggregating P179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency. The Company is
also considering to implement & quasi-reorganization to reduce the capital deficiency.

V. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
The Company has investment property located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held for capital
appreciation. On September 21, 2018, the Company sold this asset for P51,823,306 in order to
use the funds to pay the Company's liabilities and defray its expenses. The cash generated in the
disposition of the asset will be used to continue its clean-up activity and transfer of asset to
PDIC/BDO.

On December 31, 2016, the Company changed its measurement basis on investment properties
from cost model to fair value model.

Fair Yalue Measurement

Investment properties are revalued periodically a fair values as determined by an
independent firm of appraisers. The Latest appraisal report is at December 31, 2017, The fair
value of the land amounted to P&E.1 Million as at December 31, 2016 and P66.2 million as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value was determined based on valuation
performed by independent and professionally qualified appraisers with a report dated April 3,
2017, The fair value measurement for investment properties has been categorized as level 3.

The compasition of investment properties fallows:

Investment properties
Unaudiled Audited
J0-5ep-18 December 31 2017
Cost 38,020,000 38,020,000
Movement on fair value changes:
Beginning balance 31,856,000 30,115,000
Gain (loss) on FV changes = 1,741 000
Sale of Investment property 69,876,000 -
Ending balance 31,856,000 31,856,000

- 69 876,000

The appraised value of the investment properties were arrived at using the Market Data
Approach. In this approach, the value of the land was based on sales and listings of comparable
property registered within the vicinity. This requires the adjustments of comparable property by
reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a common denominatar, This was done by
adjusting the differences between the subject property and those actual sales and listings
regarded as comparable. The properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the
vicinity of the subject property. The comparison was premised on the factors of location, size
and shape of the lot, time element and athers.

The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:
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Price per square meter: estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
location, area, shape, and time element. The price per square meter used for valuation ranges
from PhP 15,000.00 to PhP 48,246.00 and from PhP 35,000.00 to PhP 40,000.00 as at December
31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Value adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation ta
the investment property taking into account the location and size. Value adjustment used is 30-
A0% and 5%-10% as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Average price index was arrived at PhP 35,000.0 to PhP37,000.00 per sg.m. and PhP 34,000.00
to PhP 36,000.00 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

¥1. Business Transactions with Related Parties
The Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 advances from its whally-owned subsidiary and
affiliate are as follows:
Parent Company and Other Related Party
Hatura of Amount of Transaction Cutstanding Balance
[ Transaction 017 2016 2017 2016
Parent Company - AYM MOMT
CORP.
Dug from [to) hdvances 20,000,000 RP40,000,000 12,420,000 40,000,000
management fee 23,092,784 23,092,784 i
43,092,784 63,002,784 12,420,000 FMJGDD,UDU
Under commen control -
ROLAMEA 5, SANTOS/SMEI Payment of DST RS00,000.00 - FS00, 00000 -
MAIRETE HOLDIMNGS CORPORATION Achvances FA00,000.00 E-  FBOOD,D00.00 R-
MARCVENTURES MIMING AMD
FEVELOPMENT CORP. Advances RS, 000, 000,00 B- B5,000,000,00 -
Rf&,300,000,00 R, 300,000.00 -
¥ll. Employees
As of December 31, 2017, the Company has no regular employees,
VIl Plan of Operation
The Cempany has no significant operational activity since its primary purpase was changed from
a development bank to a holding company in December 2002 other than those described in ltem
1 above, There are no known trends, events or material commitments that are expected to have
a material favorable or unfavarable impact on the financial condition or on income from
continuing operations. The Company also signed subscription agreements with its major
stockholders for a total proceeds of 179 million, of which P70 millian was received in April 2013
and the balance of P109 million was collected in May and June 2014, This further bring down
the capital deficit and will be the major source of funding for the expenses related to the
transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC and BSP. Aside from the transfer of assets to PDIC and
B5F, the Company continues to pursue the clean-up of its books and the settlement of its
remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion from third party
investars,
IX. Status of Operations

204

SEC Farm 2045 [FRIN) 21



The Company has a capital deficiency of P93.00 million and P79.2 million as at June 30, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively. In April 2016 34.19 million shares were converted to 1,37
million commaon shares at a rate of 25:1, which resulted to a decreased in preferred stock by
#34.1% million and increase in common  stock by 21,37 million and increase in additional paid
capital in excess af par by 32,82 million.

The Campany is pursuing discussions with third party investors for additional capital.

X. Dividends
The Company has not declared dividend for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015,

Xl. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of operations, the Company is named a defendant in various legal actions, but
it is the opinion of Management, that the ultimate liability, if any, from these cases will not seriously
affect the Company. On July 6, 2018, the Company settled the case entitled Bangka Sentral ng
Pilipinas vs. Prime Media Haoldings, Inc., docketed Civil Case No. 13130993 and pending before Branch
25, Regional Trial Court, City of Manila in order to avoid protracted litigation.

Management Report for the period September 30, 2018

The uraudited Financial Statement of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. as of September 30, 2018 and for
nine months period ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 with comparative audited figure as of
December 31, 2017 is in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there were

na changes made in accounting palicies and methaods of computation in the preparation of the interim
financial statements,

Summary of Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

September December 31,  September 30, 2018 vs.
30, 2018 2017 Dec, 31, 217
Unaudited Audited

Amount Percentage
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)
(P'000) (21000 (000}

Current assets P 61,574 16,803 44,771 166, 45%

Moncurrent assets 1,589 71,714 (70,125) -97.78%
Total Assets 63,163 BB,517 (25,354) -28.64%

Current Liabilities 213,008 193,072 19,936 10.33%

MNoncurrent Liability 9.557 9.557 - 0.00%

' 222,565 202,629 19,936 9.84%

Stockholders' Equity (159,402) (114,112) (45,292) 19.69%

Total Liabilities a_r_1_r:1 stockholders' Equity 63,163 88,517 (25,354) -1B.64%

Summary of Income Statement for the nine months and three months period ended September 30,
2018 and September 30, 2017,

For nine months ending Sept. 30  For three months ending Sept. 30

2018 207 2018 2017

{P°000) (F'000) {(F'000} (000

Revenues 1, 129 186 528 240
Expenses 46,419 19,658 42,990 6,271
Loss before tax (45,290) (19,272) (42,462)  (6,031)
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_Provision for income tax - ;
Total comprehen sivg_l_c_:ss. {45,290) {19,272} (42,462) (6,031)

Summary of Statements of Cash Flows for nine months and three months period ended September
30, 2018 and September 30, 2017.

For nine months ending For three months ending

September 30 September 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
(P’000) (P'000) (P'000) (P'000)
Cash provided (used) in operating (29,068} 8,598 {48,044) 10,475

activities

Cash used in investing activities 69,876 (1,577 69,876 (1,577}
1,720 2,702 20,696 824
Cash at beginning . -
42,528 9,723 42,528 9,723

Cash at end of the quarter

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

The company has not been actively operating other than the activities connected with the transfer
af the Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corporation (PDIC) and the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas {BSP). The Company also continues to pursue the cleanup of its books
and the settlement of its remaining abligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion
fram third party investors.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared with nine months ended September 30, 2017

The results of operation far the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and September 30, 2017 were
net loss of P45.3 million and P19.27 million, respectively or equivalent to P26.01 million or 156%
increase.

Significant changes in the incaome accounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 versus the
same period last year are as follows:

» Interest income decreased by PO.004 million ar equivalent to 48% due to lower bank balance
for this periad,

= Recovery of assel previously written off is P0O.25 million this period compared to P07 million
last year or an increase of P .0B or 48% equivalent.

» Rental income of PO.67 increased is recognized this period or equivalent to 319%.
= Mo management fee is recognized for this year,

» Professional fee increased by P0.73 million ar equivalent to 60%. The increase pertains to
payment of legal fees,

« Other Services increased by PO.63 million or 109% for payment of services for asset
management, transfer and registration, .

«  Rent expense for the period is #2.62 million as compared to PO.04 million last year, increased
by P2.6 million. The increase is mainly due to payment of arrears on associations dues to
Landco Business Park as well as penalties from years 2011 to September 2018 concerning the
Legaspi Property.
2018 520 Farrm 20-5 [PRIM) 23



« Taxes and licenses increased by P1.07 million ar equivalent to 678% mainly due to payment
of Real Property Taxes of the Legazpi for the 1st to 3rd Quarter of 2018.

« [Depreciation increased by P 0.24 million due to the depreciation of a new purchased
transportation eguipment,

« Other expenses increased by P20.95 million mainly due ta the current year payment of the
compromise settlement to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas involving a litigation.

« The Company sold its Legaspi Property in favor of Pacific Mall Corporation for
#31,823,306.50. While the sale resulted to loss of P18.05 million representing the difference
between the selling price and the fair market value of the Legaspi property as recognized in
the books. The Company was able to settle the accumulating liabilities due on the said
property. In addition, the Company was able to generate cash to defray the expenses for the
clean-up activity and to venture into other investments,

Three months ended September 30, 2018 compared with three months ended September 30,
2017

The results of operation for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and September, 2017 were
net loss of P42.46 million and #6.03 million, respectively or equivalent to 604% increased

Significant changes in the income accounts for the three months ended September 30, 2018 versus
the same period last year are as follows:

= Recovery of asset previously written off is P0.05 million this period or equivalent to 31%.
s Rental income of P0.31 million is recognized this period compared to B0.07 million last year

» Professional fees increased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 28%. Higher payment an audit
and legal fees this year.

o Taxes and licenses increased by P0.84 million mainly due to payment to BIR of real estate
taxes.

o Outside services increased by P 0.03 million or eguivalent to 71% compared to last years
EXPENSE,

» Rent expense of P 2.55 million is recognized this period due to increase in association dues.

¢ Other expenses increase by #20.95 million mainly due to the payment of compromise fee to
BSP.

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION

The significant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 versus the December 31, 2017 level are as follows:

Total assets stood at #63.16 million which is P25.36 million ar 28.64% lower than the December 31,
2017 level. Significant changes were mainly due to the following:

« Cash increased significantly from ©1.72 million as of December 31, 2017 to
P45.29 million as of September 30, 218 was brought mainly by the proceeds of sale of the
investment property,

»  Theincrease in receivable pertains to the amount withheld by Pacific Mall Corporation in relation
to the sale of investment property in Legaspi City which represents the 6% tax as assessed by the
Bureau of Internal Revenue amounting to P3.42 million,
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s Increase in Other current asset of .83 million or equivalent to 400% was brought by payment of
a prepaid insurance and accumulated input vat of the company.

= Decrease in Mon-Current assets P70.13 million or equivalent to 87.78% resulted from the sale of
investment property in Legaspi, Albay amounting to P59.88 million.

s The company incurred a net loss of P45.29 million as of September 30, 2018 which resulted to
decrease in the total stockholder's equity.

s The increase in Due to Related party accounts represents a fund amounting to P20 million
transferred by RYM Business Management Corporation for the payment of B5P Compromise
Settlement,

s The significant change on Liabilities during this interim perod is due to payment of accrued
CHPENSES,

» The company has capital deficiency of P159.4 million and P114.11 million as of September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017 respectively. An increased in capital deficiency of P45.29 million
or equivalent to 39.69% pertains to net loss for the period.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The net cash provided in operating activitics amounted to 42,53 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 as compared to the same period last year amounted to
B9.72 million, The increase in cash from operation is the net result of the following:

« Met loss generated during the nine months period.
= Increase in due to related parties

* Proceeds from sale of investment property.

« Collection of advances to affiliates,

« Increase in Receivables

« |ncrease in other assets

The net effect of the foregoing operating activities, is an increase of 3280 million and a balance

of P42.53 million in cash as of September 30, 2018 as compared to #9.72 million as of September
10, 217,

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis:

Unaudited Audited Increase(decrease)
September 30, 2018 2017 Amount  Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash on hand and in banks P 42,527,919 #1,720,131 P 40,807,688  2372.22%
Receivable 6,398,005 2,453,932 3,944,072 160, 7%
Due from Related Parties 11,606,938 12,420,000 {B13,062) -6.55%
Other current assets 1,040,876 208,359 B32,518 399.56%
Total Current Assets 61,573,738 16,802,522 44,771,216 266 46%
Noncurrent Assets
Investment Property - #a9 B76,000 P (69,876,000) -100.00%
Available-for-sale investment #300,000 300,000 - 0.00%
Equipment (Met} 1,288,770 1,538,190 {249,420) 16,225
Total Moncurrent Assets P1,588,770 P71,714,190 P {70,125,420) -97 . 78%
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- i ] P63,162,508 PBE,516,712 P (25,354,204)  -2B.64%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities P193,007,576 P193,071,645 P (64,070) -0.03%
Due to Related Parties 20,000,000 B 20,000,000 100.00%
Moncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax liability 9,556,800 9,556,800 - 0.00%
P222,564,376 P202,628,445 P19,935,930 9. 54%
Equity
Preferred Capital stock P14,366,260 P14,366,260 0.00%
Common Capital stock 700,298,616 700,298 616 . 0.00%
Additional paid-in capital - 2,114,921,869 (2,114,921 ,869) -100, 00
Met unrealized gain on AFSI 100,000 100,000 . 0.00%
Deficit (874,166,743) (2,943,798,478)  2,06%,631,735 -70.30%
Total Equity P (159,401,867) P (114,111,733} P (45,290,134 39.69%

P63,162.508  P88,516,712 P (25,354,204) _ -2B.64%

Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a manual on corporate governance, which details the standards by which it
conducts sound corporate governance consistent with relevant laws and regulations.

Ultimate responsibility for the Company’s adherence to its manual rests with its Board of Directors,
and through three committees that are to be charged with aversight functions on specific areas of
the Company's activities. The Audit Committee is charged with internal audit oversight over all of
the Company's transactions. The Nomination Committee is charged with ensuring that thase admitted
as members of the Company’s Board of Directors are qualified, as well as ensuring fair representation
of independent directors in the Company's Board of Directors. Finally, the Compensation and
Remuneration Committee is tasked to ensure that fair compensation practices are adhered
throughout the organization,

In view however, of its current condition, the Company is not actively conducting business. Despite
said absence of actual business operations, the Company is currently undergoing internal
reorganization and in the processing of evaluating its compliance with its reporting obligations as a
public company. As such, it is not in a position to fully comply with the provisions of the manual an
corporate governance, There is no regular meetings conducted by the Committees. There is also no
Compensation Committee, in view of the fact that the Company's directars and officers currently do
not receive compensation for serving as such. Motwithstanding the foregoing, the Company continues
to endeavar towards internally reorganizing and evaluating its compliances to the rules applicable to
it as a public company, Despite the status of the business aperations of the Company, it has submitted
to the Securities and Exchange Commission current reports (SEC Form 17-C) and quarterly (SEC Form
17-Q) and annual (SEC Form 17-A) reports to update the investing public of its financial and
operational condition.

Market Information

The closing market price of the Company's comman stock in the Philippine Stock Exchange on 30
September 2018 is PhP 1.19,

The high and low prices for each quarter of 2017 and 2018 are provided below:
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Q1 (2017) 1.01 1.26
Q2 (2017) 0.76 1:47
Q3 (2017) 0.92 1.65
Q4 (2017) 1.02 1.98
Q1 (2018) 1.08 1.68
Q2 (2018) 1.09 1.62
Q3 (2018) 1.15 1.68

The comman shares of the Company is held by 1,5%8 shareholders of common shares and 267
sharehalders of preferred shares, The list of the top 20 stockholders of the Company as of 30
September 2018 is attached herewith.

Other than the conversion of preferred shares to common shares as stated in page 13, the Company
has no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities or recent issuance of securities constituting an
exempt Lransaction.

UPOM THE WRITTEM REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER(S), THE CORPORATION UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH
SAID STOCKHOLDER(S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A, FREE OF CHARGE, EXCEPT FOR THE EXHIBIT
ATTACHED THERETO, WHICH SHALL BE CHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF
SEC FORM 17-A SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty, Diane Madelyn C. Ching at ¢/o Marcventures, 4" Floor
Citibank Center Bldg., Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGMNATURE PAGE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set
farth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on the 171
day of October 2018,
PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

N

Christopher Sam Salvador
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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CERTHICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Johnny Y. Aruege, Jr., Filipino, of legal age and a resident of No. 167 Libra Street,
Cinco Hermanos Subdivision, Marikina City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law, do hereby declare that:

1. Tam a nominee for Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. for its
beard meeting on 11 Decernber 2017,

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government Owned and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION P POSITION/RELATIONSHIP ¢ PERIOD OF SERVICE
Aruego Bite and Associates Partner | Since 2001
Lorenzana Food Corporation Corporate Secretary and/or Since 2012
Lezal Consultant
ANV, Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Corporate Secretary and/or Since 2011
Insurance Broker, Inc. ' Legal Counsel
East Offices Realty and Legal Counsel Since 2012
Management Co,, Inc. 1
National Steel Corporation Legal Consultant Since 2006
FET Flans, Inc. Asgistant Rehabilitation Since 2006
Rereiver
Advent Capital and Finance Assistant Liquidator Since 2001
Corporation
Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. Assistant Liquidator Since 2003
East Asia (AEA) Capital Assislant Liquidator Since 2009
Corporation
Reynolds Philippines Corporation Assistant Liquidator Since 2005

3. I possess all the quaelifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Codeg, its Implementing Rules and Rezulations
and other SEC issuances.

4. Other than as disclosed in Item 2 above, I am not in any way related to any
director/ officer/substantial shareholder of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates.

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
acdministrative investigation or proceeding,



6. Ishall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. of
. any changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its

~1

aQcCurTenCe.
i!fEﬁf p:d g 47 MAKATICITY
Dane this dayof at___ .
}Dﬂm@r}r&.
Affiant
ROV 28 2p97
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of

_at_ weakamGITY e personally appeared before me and
exhibited to me his Driver’s License No. NO1-87-048565 expiting on 03 February
2019.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Francisco L. Layug, III, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 12 F. Bernabe St,,
Merville Park Subdivision, Paranaque City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law do hereby declare that;

1. Iam anominee for Independent Director of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. for its board
meeting on 21 December 2017,

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government Owned and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE |
Rotary Club of Pasay [ President-Elect 2017-2018
University of the Philippines i President 2010-2011
Electronics and Electrical
Engineering Alumni Association,
Inc. (UPEEEAAIL)
Alav-Lakad Foundation Vice President 2009-2010

1]

3. T possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Prime Media Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other
SEC issuances.

4. Other than as disclosed in Item 2 above, I am not in any way related to any
director/ officer/substantial shareholder of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates,

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding,.

6. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

7. 1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its
occurrence.
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Done this day of , at

nikaT GIEY

Francisco L. Layug, ITI
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thid™ 28 2017 day of

at  MARETICITY affiant personally appeared before me and

exhibited to me his/her —w 9 197 &8~ 16k issued at
on

Doc. No. _¢Z Q; x
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REPUBLIC OF TIHE PHILIPPINES)
MAKATT CITY 1 8.5

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

[, CHRISTOPHER SAM §, SALVADOR, of legal age, Filipino and with office address at
28" Floor Pacific Star Building Makati Ave cor. Sen. Gil Puyar Ave. Makad City 1227, Philippines,
after hﬂ‘.’ing been stl:..-' sworn in accordance with lawy, hr_'n:h‘:,' d{:pnﬁr_' and state that:

1. [ am the duly elected and qualified Assistant Corporate Sectetary of PRIME
MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. (the “Corporation™), a corporation duly organized and existing under
the laws of the Philippines, with principal office at 16" Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de
Roxas, Makad City.

2 [ hereby certify that none of the Corporaton’s Regular Directors, Independent

Directors and Officers are appointed or employed in any government agency.

] L Dd? %’@ESS WHEREOF, this Certificate was Higncd and issued this ,:J_.,l}. of
VY VLT LV TD018 at Makatl City, Philippines,

prelr”

CHRISTOPHER SAM S. SALVADOR
Arsitant Corporate Secretary

.
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __ day off 0 0CT 2018 &

Malkati City ., Philippines. affiant exhubited his walicl ]
o, K1 ANCET UNA .\‘-Egm

i E2 : Appoin bl Mo, MA5912018-2019)

s e i : bl 21 Elscamber 2019

BookNo. L Toll Mo G904

Setes oL 4018, PIT Blo, 6614473 01704/ 18; Makati City

[BF Mo (71985 07 /18,017 Makati Clty
28" Fir., Pacific Star Bldg., Makati City
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Remarks = pls. Use black ink for SCanning purposes
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. Forthe fiscal year ended December 31 2017

2. SEC ldentification Number 22401
3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-491-007

4. Exacl name of issuer as specified in its chailer PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC._ (Formerly First

e-Bank Corporation)
5, Manitg 6. ] (SEC Use Ony

Province, Country or other furisdiction of Iedustry Classification Code:
Incorporation or organization

7. 167 Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1227
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. __{632) 831-4479

Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. Neot applicable

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Secunties registered pursuani to Sections § and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class [ Number of Shares of Common Stock Outslanding
o ; and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Preferred slock, PHP 1.00 par value 14,366,260

Common Stock, Php 1.00 par value 700,298 616

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on 5 Stock Exchange?

Yes [X] Mo ]

Philippine Slock Exchange
12. Check whether the issuer

{a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and BSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of

The Corporation Code of the Phitippines during the preceding twelve (12} months (or for such shorte
period that the registrant was required in file such renarte)

Yes [X] No| ]
(b} Has been subject 10 such filing requirements for the past ninety (80) days
Yes [X] Nof ]

13. The agoreqate market value of the voling sleck held by non-affiliates is 144 492 645 computed on
the basis of 124 562 625 representing 17.79% of the outstanding common shates at the closing
price as of April 13, 2018 of Pesos 1.16 per share,
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
(A) Description of Business
Mem 1. Business Development

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (PRIM} was originally incorporated on February 6, 1963 as
Private Development Corporation of the Philippines and then changed to PDCP
Development Bank, Inc. that same year. On June 6, 2000, the Company changed its name
to First e-Bank Corporation and then eventually shifted to its cumrent name on October 20,
2003,

In 2002, Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. assumed the servicing of PRIM's deposit liabilities and
other banking functions. On December 6 2002, the Board of PRIM approved the
amendment of its ariicles of incorporation to change to primary purpose from a development
bank to & holding company, which would hold investments in the media industry

On January 26, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the amendment in its articles
of incorporation (AOT) extending the corporate life of PRIM by another 50 years up to
February 6, 2063, The Stockholders of the Company approved and ratified the amendment
in a special stockholders' meeting on February 4, 2013, On February 5, 2013, the Company
filed the amended AO| with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and SEC
approval was obtained last March 4, 2013,

On March 2. 2015, the SEC approved the change of principal office address from 3 San
Antonic Street, Barrio Kapitolyo, Pasig City to 18th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City.

In view of the very minimal operations, the Company gradually retired all its employees by
2010 and engaged consultants/service providers to service its requirements,

Item 2. Properties

Practically all the properties of the Company while it was still & bank consisting of bank
premises (land, buildings and leasehold rights) and real estate acquired through dacion and
foreclosure were conveyed to BDO/PDIC. There are certain properties which remains as
investment properties which are primarily 1o finance the operating expenses of the
Company. Piease refer io Note 7 of the 2016 Audited Financial Statements (AFS).

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Considering the Company’s previous operation, the Company was named defendant in
various legal actions. One of the cases which may affect the Company is the case of
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas vs. Prime Media Holdings, Inc., docketed Civil Case No.
13130993 and pending before Branch 25 Regional Trial Court, City of Manila, The
summary of the case is provided below

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) filed an action for Collection of a Sum of Money in the
amount of ®42.487 770.23 representing alleged rental arrears under the (i) Contract of
Lease with Option to Purchase ("Contract’) between the BSP and PDCP Development
Bank (PDCP Bank, which changes its name to First E-Bank Corporation or First E-Bank,
now, Prime Medial Holdings, Inc. or PMHI) dated 14 January 2001; (i) Agreement to Extend
the Buyback Period of the Repurchased Properties ("Agreement of 2001") dated 30 July
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2001 between the BSF and First E-Bank; and (i} Renewal of Contract of Lease with
Option to Purchase {"Agreement of 2002%), notarized on 8 January 2002.

In its Answer, PMHI interposed & defense that the Conftracts on which the Complaint is
based, are all void and inexistent violative of the General Banking Act, principle of mutuality
of contracts as well as Articles 19, 20 and 21 of the Civil Code, and principle on unjust
enrichment under Article 22 of the same Code. As counterclaim, PMHI is claiming the
amount of One Hundred Forty Five Million Pesos (P145,000,000.00) which was unilaterally
forfeited by BSP.

The parties have submitted their formal offer of evidence.
Please see Note 14 of the attached 2016 AFS.
liem 4. Submission of Maiters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the Annual Shareholders’ Meeling held last 21 December 2017, the Tollowing were
submitted for approval of the shareholders:

Cail to order

Certification of Quorum

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of Management's Act

Elaction of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other matters

Adjourment

PONDOD NS

PART Il - OPERATIONA! AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
(1} Market information
The total number of outstanding shares of record as of December 31, 2016 is
700,298,616 of which 663,713,458 is actively being traded in the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices in pesos for each quarter within the 1ast
three fiscal years 2014 to 2016 are given below:

| Year Quarter High Low
12015 15 162 1.30
. 166 | 128
3¢ 1.40 1.08
4" | 167 110
2016 = 147 0.90
‘ o 184 125
i 1.35 116
T 154 112
(2017 | 4 | 126 | 101 |
- e B i Rl R
B & 3 185 | 092 i



j Year Quarter " High

Low .!

| | & 198

1.02

Common Shareholders

(2} Holders of Securities

The number of common shareholders on record as of December 31, 2017 Is
1,603.The list of the top twenty common shareholders as of December 37,2017
is provided below

Name of Stockholders ' No. of shares | %age of
s ; _ . ownership
1__| PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipinoj_ 670,538,553 85.75
2 | First Producers Holdings, Corp. 6,175,789 | 0.88
FAQ Ray Burion Dev't Corporation o
3 | First Producers Holdings, Corp. 4 803 852 070 |
] FAOQ Producers Properties, Inc. -
| 4 Ray Burton Development 3,213 203 046
| Comporation N S
5 | Producers Properties. inc. 3,013,701 0.43 |
6 | Mercantile Investment Company, 1,585,988 0.23
Inc. \ f - —
7 | PCD Nominee Corporation 1,801,836 | 0.19
(Foreign) - i | .
8 | Albert Del Rosario ITF Anthony 1,289,279 0.18
| Safim : )
9 i Emesto B. Lim 880.000 0.13
10 | Lucio W. Yan &/or Clara Yan 600,000 0.08
11 |JoelB Vargas 534,876 0.08 |
12 | Merene So &/or So Peng Kee 239,000 0.03 |
13 (Maria T. Uy 211,200 0.03
14 | Jose Yu Go_Jr 210000 003
15 | Jovy Lim Go | 150,000 0.02 |
16 | Qeu Lu Kiong ! 150,000 0.02 |
17 | Rufino H. Abad 142,011 | 0.02
18 | Luciano H. Tan ) 139,600 0.02 |
16 | Leonardo Navalta g R 132,294 0.02 |
i 20 | Lamberto C. Dizon &for Erlinda V. 127,860 0.02
’ Dizon i




Freferred Shareholders

The number of preferred shareholders of record as of December 31, 2017 was 267.
Preferred shares outstanding as of December 31, 2017 were 14,366,260. The top
twenty shareholders are as follows:

[ No. | Name of Stockholders No.of | %age of
..... e shares | ownership
1 | Florentine L. Martinez 907,340 £6.32% |
2 __|Caros Torres 800,000 5.57%
3 | MDI Employees Retirement Plan 810450 425% |
4 | Metrolab Employees Refirement 54&[!4{}1 3.79%
Flan !
|5 | Helena Llereza 529,810 | 3.69%
€ | HPPI Employees Retirement Plan 500,600 1.03%
7 E. Chua Chiaco Sec., Inc. 449 640 3.13%
8 [ Citi Securities Inc. 7403000 2.81% |
9 | Wealth Securities, inc. 1 402,000 2.80% |
10 | VirginiaU.Ng 344,470 |  2.40% |
11 | PNB Securities inc. ] 300,280 2.09%
12 | Tato A, Johan ' 300,000 2.09%
13 | BDO Trust Banking Group 3
Fao Miriam College Foundation Inc.
Empioyees 280,000 1.95% |
14_| Antonio R_Samson 250,000 [ 4,74%
| 15 | Segundo Seangic | 244000 1.70%
16 | Diversified Sec,, Inc. 218,080 1.62% |
17 | Antonio Alipio | 218000 |  1.52%
1 18 | Teresita Cometa | 210,000 1.458%
19 | Eastern Securities Devt. Corp. 196,340 1.37%
{20 |VirginiaU.Ng 183,130 1.27% |

{3) Dividends
There ware no dividends declared.
{4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or exempt Securities

On April 6, 2013, the BOD approved the conversion of advances from Neo Oracle
Holdings, inc. (NOHI} and Metro Tagaytay Land Co. inc. (MTLCI) amounting to
P118.7 million and P480.8 million, respectively, into 47,861,410 common shares and
182,323,360 common shares, respectively, at stipulated conversion price of P2 50
per commaon share,

On the same daie, ihe BOD entered into a subscription agreement with NOHI and
MTLCH for 179.0 million or 71.6 million common shares with an issue price of #2 50
per share. The Company received the minimum subscription price amounting to
$70.0 miliion which was used by the Company to pay its loan with BDO. During May
and June 2014, NOHI and MTLCI fully paid their subscriptions with the payment of
the 109 million balance,



As of December 31, 2014, the Company issued 311,784,770 shares to NOHI and
MTLCI as a result of the conversion of advances and subscription agreemeni. The
listing of the said shares was approved by the PSE on December 15, 2014,

ltem 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Pian of Operation.

The Company has not been actively operating since its primary purpose was changed from
a development bank 10 a holding company in December 2002 other than the continuing
activities described I Part | A (1). There are no known trends, events or material
commitments that are expected to have a malerial favorable or unfavorabie impact on the
financial condition or on income from continuing operations. The Company also signed
subscription agreements with its major stockholders for a total proceeds of P179 million, of
which F70 miflion was received in April 2013 and the balance of £109 million was collected
in May and June 2014. This furiher bring down the capital deficit and will be the major
source of funding for the expenses related to the transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC
and BSP. Aside from the transfer of assets to PDIC and BSP, the Company continues to
pursue the clean-up of its books and the settlement of its remaining obligations to pave the
way for possible additional capital infusion from third parly investors.

The Company is still exploring for a new business. ite current activities comprise mainly of
transfering asset related fo its development bank operation to BDO & PDIC. Thus, the
company has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of #114.11 million
and FE5.74 million as at December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively. The Stockholders,
however, have continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain company
operations. The stockholders converted their preferred stock of P48.6 million into common
stock in 2016 and converted their advances of P800.5 million 1o additional capital in 2014
and infused capital aggregate £119.0 million In 2014 and 2013 to reduce capital deficiency.
The Company is considering the implementation of a Quasi recrganization to reduce capital
deficiency.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

Audited Increase(Decrease)
2017 2016 Amount o
fin PhiF Millions)
Assets P88.68 P116.46 (27.78} (23.85
)
Liabilities 202,68  202.20 0.48 627
Stockholders’ Equity (114.00  (85.74) (28.26) 32.96

)

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P27.78 Million or equivalent to 23.85% from
£116.43 Million in 2016 to PB88.68 Million in 2017, The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:



Cash decreased significantly from ®2.70 million as of December 31, 2016 to
P1.72 milion as of December 31, 2017, a decrease of P0.97 million or eqlivalent to
36.06% pertains mainly to the payment of edministrative expenses.

Receivable decreased by P2.07 million or equivalent 1o 45.80% due to set up of
ailowance for doubtful accounts on cash advances.

Other current assets decreased due to reversal of interest receivable amounting to
#0.69 million or equivalent to 74.07%,

Due from Parent Company decreased significantly by P27.58 million or equivalent to
88.85% pertains to the collection on advances made to RYM Business Management
Corporation.

Equipment increased pertains to purchase of Teyota Hilux amounting to #1.58 million.

Liabiities increased by P0.48 million or equivalent to 6.27% mainly due to increase in
deferred tax liability.

The company incurred a net loss of 28,32 million in 2017 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder's equity.

Results of Operations

Int millien
Audited Increase(Decrease)
. 2017 2016 Amount %
Income 2.36 2.87 {0E1) {20.54)
Expenses 3012 2864 1.48 517

Cperating results reflected 3 net loss of P28.32 million in 2017, P2.08 milfion or equivalent
to 7.92% higher as compared to 2016 reported net loss of F26.26 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

Recovery of accounts writien-off decreased by P0.55 millien or 77.33% due to lower
coliected this year.

Provision for impairment loss increased by P2.13 million due to set up of allowance for
doubtful accounts on cash advances made to the previously engaged for processing the
transfer and registrations.

Professional fees decreased by 21.11 million or equivalent to 38.14% due to lower legal
feesin 2017,

Outside services increased from ®1.09 million in 2016 to #1372 million in 2017,
P0.23 million or equivalent to 21.10% primarily due to engagement of individual for court
appearance.

Taxes and licenses decreased from PO.65 million in 2016 to ®0.46 million in 2017,
28 23% Indue to payment of Documentary stamp tax on 20186,



+ Rent decreased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 28.63% due lower association dues in
2017.

» Salaries and allowance decreased by P0.13 million or equivalent to 100.00% due to paid
allowance on contractual employees in 2016 and none in 2017,

* Depreciation expense Increased by P0.10 million for the transportation equipment,

+« Other expenses increased by P0.55 million due to recognize of other miscellaneous
expense from interest receivable.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2016 and
2015 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P30.44 Million or equivalent to 20.99% from
F145.00 Million in 2015 to P114.56 Million in 2016. The significant changes were mainly due
to the following;

« Cash decreased significantly from P73.22 million as of December 31, 2015 to
P2.70 million as of December 31, 2016, a decreass of 70.52 million or eauivalent to
96.31% pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made
to RYM Business Management Corpaoration. The advances were subsequently collected
in 2017.

« Due from Parent Company increased significantly by P40.00 million or equivalent to
100.00% pertains ta the advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation.

+ The company incurred a net loss of P27.61 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockheiders equity.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of B27.60 million in 2016, F3.10 million or equivalent
to 10.10% lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of P30.70 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

« Outside services decreased from P2.0%milion In 2045 to P1.09 million in 2018,
F1.00 milion or equivalent to 47.85% decrease primarily due to the payment of
appraisal fee for the appraisal on the properties of the Company in 2015.

» Taxes and licenses decreased from B1.57 million in 2015 to PO.65 million In 20186,
57.98% in due to payment of real propenty tax

« Rent decreased by ®0 98 million or equivalent o 78.40% due to termination of rentai
contract for office space used in 2015,

« Other expenses decreased by P1.15 million due to last year's loss on litigation on the
“China Banking Carporation vs, Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank {now
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.)", under Civil Case No. 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.



Explanations for the materiai changes in the Company's accounts between 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P36.89 Mtlion or equivaleni to 24.00% from
153,67 Niillion in 2014 to #116.78 Million in 2015. The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

» Cash decreased significantly from £110.05 million as of December 31, 2014 to £73.22
million as of December 31, 2015, a decrease of P36 22 milllon or equivalent to 33.468%,
pertains mainly to payment of liabilities and administraliive expenses

» Receivables decreased from P4.65 million as of December 31, 2014 to P4.38 million as
of December 31, 2015, a decrease of #0.27 million or equivalent to 5.70% mainly due to
the collection of the subleased property rent.

+ The company incurred a net loss of P30.70 miltion in 2015 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder's equity by #30.60 million,

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P30.70 miliion in 2015, P29.43 million or equivalent
to 2,326 61% higher as compared to 2014 reported net loss of ®1.27 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

= The company entered into management agreement with RYM Business Management
Corporation for a Management services amounting to B23.1 million

« Professional fee increased from £0.46 million to F2.50 million in 2015 or equivalent to
443.48% due to monthly legal fees paid for the cases handled.

= Qutside services increased from £1.81million in 2014 to P2.0S million in 2015, #0 47
million or equivalent to 29.39% decrease pamarily due fo payment of appraisal fee for
the appraisal on the properties of the Company amountng o #1.15 million.

« Taxes and licenses increased from P1.36 million in <014 to ®1.57 million in 2015,
14.86% in due to payment of real property tax.

« Rent increased by P0.62 million or equivalent fo 98.5% due fo payment of office rental,
storage and warehouse charges.

+« Other expenses Increased by P0.71 million due to kss on litigation on the “China
Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now Prime
Media Holdings, Inc.)”, under Civil Case No. 85-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.

Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Comparative figures of the key performance indicators (KPI) for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016

T L 2016
Long (P27,744,452) (P25680 115)

Current assets 16.802 622 48 027 135
141



2017 2018

Total assets BB.B7E8,7T12 116,459 334
Current liabilities 183,071,645 193,160,882
Total liabilities 202,676,445 201,185,382
Stockholders’ Equity (113,999,733)  (B5,736,047)
No. of common shares outstanding 700,298,616 700,298 616
2017 2016

Current ratio * 0.09 0.25
Book value per share ? {0.16) (0.12)
Debi ratio * {1.78) {2.36)
Profit per share * (0.04) (0.04)
Retumn on assets ® {0.27) (0.44)
Note:

1. Current assets / current liabilities

2. Stockholder's Equity / Total outstanding number of shares

3. Total Liabilities / Stockholder's Equity

4. NetIncome ( Loss ) / Total outstanding number of shares

5. Netincome [ average total assets

ltem 7. Financial Statemenis

The 2016 Audited Financial Statements and schedules are filed as part of
Form 17-A.

item B. Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters

External Audit Fees and Services

'Year Ended December 31
2017 2016

Audit Fees 330,000 £330,000

Audit Fees. Represents professional fees of the extemal auditor for the audit services
rendered on Company's Annual Financial Statements for the year 2017 and 2016.

Audit services provided to the Company by extemal auditor have been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the magnitude and nature of these
services to ensure that they are compatible with maintaining the independence of the
external auditor,

Changes in and disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and financial
Disclosure

There was no event in the past years where the exiemnal auditor and the Registrant had any
disagreements with regard te any matier relating to accounting principies or practices,
financial staternent disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.



PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ltem 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the lssuer
Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship and periods of service of the past and the
incumbent directors/independent directors of the Company:

’ o = | Period during which individual |
Hans B Age __| Citizenship | has served as such

Manolito A. Manalo | 47 Filipine | May 28 2013 to present
Bernadeth A. Lim 33 | Filipino May 28 2013 to present
Juan Victor 8. Valdez | 44 | Filipino ___May282013topresent
Diane Madetyni C. Ching 35 Filipino | October 2013 to present

| Rolando S. Santos ~..| 67 Filipino | January 06 2017 to present |

Jehnny Y. Aruego Jr. _
{independent director) 46 Filipino Mayl 2_52?:'3 D pmsan R
Francisco L. Layug Il i

| (ndependent director) i | €3 Filipine ] December 21 2017 to present

Officers

The following are the names, ages, posttions, citizenship and periods of service of the past
and incumbent officers and advisors of the Company:

. D " 7T Period during which
Name Age Position Citizenship | individuai has served
a — - . B g g as Euch
| Manalito Manalo 47 | President&CEO | Filipino | May 2013 to present
| Bemadeth A. Lim 33 | Vice President Filipino May 2013 {o present
Diane Madelyn C. i i Corporate
Ching % Secretary |__Filipino _H?F 20%e prasant —
] _— January 08 2017 to
Eifando_s .S.a.aiw_tpas 67 Treasure_r_. _ FI!ID_ITE} present |
Christopher Sam S, Co-Corporaie Fiioing | December 2014 to
Salvador Information Officer i | present

Business Experience and Other Directorships
ﬂfr'ar:to{‘s

The business experience of each of the past and incumbent directors of the Company for
the last five (5) years is as follows.

Directors

Manolito A. Manalo was elected as President and Director in May 2013. He is the co-
founder and managing partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a Director and
President of Panalpina \World Transport (Phils.), Inc. He also sits as Director in Kajima
Philippines Inc. He began his law practice as an associate in Leovillo C. Agustin Law Offices

12



from 1995 to 1996 and Britanico Consunji and Sarmiento from 1896 to 1997. He later
headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from 1997 to 1998,

Bemadeth A. Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013. She is a junior
partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is a Director and Corporate Secretary of
Kajima Philippines incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technology Solutions Inc., Anawhan Reaity
Inc. and Bryaric Holdings Corp. She also sits a Director in Venpay Mobile Systems Inc.

Juan Victor 8. Valdez was elected as Director in May 2013, He Is 2 junior partner of
Ocampo and Manale Law Firm. He is 2 director, Vice—-President for Legal Affairs and
Corporate Secretary of PATTS College of Aeronautics, one of the country’s leading
aeronautic schools. He also sits as director in Segundo Travel & Tours Inc., Hafti Tours Inc.
and Kgjima Philippines Incorporated,

Monica Isabelle |. Villanueva was elected as Corporate Secretary and Director in April
2013 up to August 22, 2017. She is a senior associate in Ocampe and Manalo Law Firm,
She is also & Director in Autocardinal Inc., Building Maintenance Unit Inc, Manorfort Capital
inc. and Ripplewood Property Holdings Inc.

Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected as Director in October 2013, She currently serves as
Corporate Secretary of AG Finance Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc.
(formerly Bankard Inc.} as well as General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
Marcventures Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary, Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.
She provides legal consultancy services to PLDT Global {Philippines) Corp. Atty. Ching was
previously an associate of Ocampo & Manalo Law Firm from March 2010 to June 2013

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013 He is a
partner in Aruegoe Bite and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources
Corporation. He is the Corporate Secretary and Legal Counsel for Agility, Inc. and A, V.
Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He is a Legal Consultant of Loranzana Food
Corporation, National Steel Corporation and Margarita Land and Management Co., Inc. He
is the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon, Inc., Pet Plans, Ing.
Bacnotan Sieel Industries, Inc. and Al Asia Capital and Trust Corporation. He is an
assistant liquidator of East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corporation.

Francisce L. Layug Iif was elected as an Independent Director in December 2017, He is
the President of Rotary Club of Pasay. He served as President of University of the
Philippines Electronics and Electrical Engineering Alumni Association, Inc. (UFPEEEAAI)
from 2010-2011. He-was alsc a Vice President of Alay-Lakad Foundation from 2008-2010.

Otfier Officers
The business experience of each of the incumbent officers of the Company for the last five
(5) years |s as follows:

Rolando 8. Santos was elected as Treasurer in October 2012 and Director in August 22
2017. He serves as Vice President and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments
Inc. and as Treasurer of Marcventures Hoidings Inc. and Marcventures Mining and
Development Corp. He was previously the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches
of Equitable PC! Bank which was eventually acquired by BDO from 2001 to 2013,



Christopher Sam 8. Salvador was re-elected as Co-Corporate Information Officer in
December 2017. He is an associate of Ocampo & Manalo law firm. He is a director and the

Treasurer of Pureholdings, Inc., Corporate Secrstary
Associate Corporate Secretary for Island Tranvayager,

item 10. Executive Compensation

The aggregate compensation paid in 2016 and 2017 and estimated to be paid in 2018, to
the officers of the Company is set out below:

|Names " TPposition ['Year Salary Bonus | Others
| Manolito A | Chairman &

| Manalo President L )
| Bernadeth A. Lim | Vice President -
| Diane Madelyn C. | Corporate

Rolande S. Santos | Treasurer | _ N
hggregate for 1 2015 0 Q 22222
above  named 2018 0 0 25,000
Al Directors and 2015 0 0 21,778 |
Officers as a 2016 0 b D 30,000 |
group unnamed 2017 G i 0 25000 |

1 2018(est. ! 0 F ¥) 70,000 |

——— 0

of Timebound Trading Inc., and
Inc. and Bacuit Airholdings, Inc,
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ltem 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Dwners and Management

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of at least o% of the Company's
Securities as of 31 December 2017

Mame and address ' .
; Mame of Beneficial
Type of of id § . : ; Mo. of fi
Bl | o relationship | Cizenship | Owner & Retatianship Shares Hld E:? i
it SeB . with Record Owner
! {.‘.Emmun PCD Nominee RYM Business
R Filipino Management Comp./ 463 556,085 | 66.19%
i Client
Common | PCD Nominee Filipino Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. | 97178901 | 14.00%
Shares |

On December 18, 2015, the Company disclosed that it recsived information from RYM
Business Management Corp. that the latter acquired through foreclosure sale 93 685 410
and 218,098,360 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCI, respectively, resulting to
87.38% ownership in the Company.

Other than the abovementioned transaction, the Company has no knowledga of any person
who, as of December 31, 2017, was directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of, or who has
voting power or investment power {pursuant to a voting trust or other similar agreement)
with respect to, shares comprising more than five percent (5%) of the Company's
outstanding common shares of stock

Security Ownership of Management as of December 31, 2017

- Amount and naiure
Type of Class e ancd Address of of Beneficial Citizenship P?TEM ‘
L _ i - : . ownership | S
Common Manolito Manalo | 1 Filiping 00% |
Common Bernadeth A, Lim 1 Filipino |  0.0%
 Common | Diane Madelyn Ching 1000 | Fiipino | 0.0%
Common Juan Victor §. Valder 1 Filipino 0.0%
/ Common Johnny Y. AruegoJr. | 1 Filipino 0.0%
| Common __ "Rolando S. Santos 1000 T |
’_Cumijnqn . Francisco L. Layug ||| 1 Filipino . 0.0%
‘ TOTAL 2005 . jI 2 ;

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any voling trust agreements or any other similar agreements
which may result in @ change in control of the Company. As reported to the SEC and PSE.
on December 18, 2015, RYM Business Management Corp. acquired through foreclosure
sale 93685410 and 218,099380 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCL
respectively, resuiting to 87.38% ownership in the Company

15




item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

As of December 31, 2017, Bright Kindle Resources Corporation has an outstanding balance
of PB9B,653 which represents a non-interest bearing unsecured rent receivable to be
settied on demand. Also, as of December 31, 2015, the Company has a liability to

Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation amounting to P22 475 which represents
a non-interest bearing unsecured payable to be settled on demand. Please refer 1o Note 15

of the attached 2015 AFS.
Pari iV-Corporate Governance
ltem 13. Corporate Governance

This portion has been deleted pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 05 Series of
2013,

Part V — Exhibits and Schedules
ltem 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
{a) Exhibits
See accompanying Index to Exhibits,
The following exhibits are filed as a separate section of this report
(b} Reports on SEC Form 17-C

ltems reporied under SEC Form 17-C during the last six months covered by this report:

| Date of Disclosure | Subject

April 11, 2017 Results of Board Meeting held on 10 April 2017
| Postponement of 2017 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting ]
August 22, 2017 Change in Directors and/or Officers (Resignation/ Removal or
Appointment/Election) s
Dctober 10,2017 | Results of Board Meeting held on 10 October 2017
| October 30, 2017 | Change in Stock Transfer Agent

Deacembar 21, | Results of Annual Stockholders' Meeling heid last 21
2017 December 2017
| Results of Organizational Meeting ol

14



SIGNATURES

Fursuant to the regquirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Comporation
Code, this report is signed on beha!f of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of b boiilhdol 3.0 on , 2018

/

By
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MANOLITO b’. MANALO 4 RO 0 &. SANTOS
FPrasident Treasurer
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DIANE MADELY{Y C. CHING
Corporate Secretary
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __ APRAY §r 211 2018
affiant(s) exhibiting to me histtheir Driver's License, as follows:

~ NAMES _ Driver's License no. __Expiry date
Manolito A. Manalo | 185-562-309 =3
Rolando S. Santos 127-551-054 | v
{ Diane Madelyn C_Ching 201-507-466 |
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Management of Prime Media Holdings, Ine, is responsibie for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attachoed
therein for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines iy necessary (o enable the preparation of financig)
statemients that are free from material nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible fov assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters
refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends (o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
reaiistic alterpative but to do so

The Board of Direclors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same 1o the stockholders or members,

Reyes Tacandong & Ce,, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, has audited the financial statemnents of
the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report fo
the smc:khcﬂdec(fal members, has expsessed its opinion on the fairness of presentation
Hpon mmpleti;{m of such gudit d

S}Enawm N\ rf?ﬂ i

Maﬁtﬁu‘k MANALO v

Chaigfian and President of the Board

Signature _ / g s

ROLANDO 8§, SANTOS

Treastirer

Signed this_20 deyof _ AR 2¢01/8
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

PRACTITIONER'S COMPILATION REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2017 and 2016

oz 0



LIk sl b i« povtiie, bt

Ll sy e, S a4 T i,-'|$-,'-

NICK JULE B. TORRES Prome 455 10 3

Certified Public Accowniant CPALireroe S OMTBE | Moblle | 1 9T 853 ()
i RUA Acorerliaton N 2% | E-mall @ ick sarai ool Lo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
ON AN ENGAGEMENT TO COMPILE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Stockhoiders
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

1&6th Foor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

Repoit on the Financial Statements

I have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, inc. {the Company), a
subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the staternent of financial position of as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity, and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies.

Based on the Information provided by the management, | have applied my expertise in accounting and
financial reporting to assist the Company in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financiai Reporting Standards (PFRS). | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements, including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and
due care,

Since a compilation engagement s not an assurance engagement, l am not required to verify the accuracy
or completeness of the information provided by the management for compilation. | have not conducted
an audit nor a review of the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, | do not express an audit
apinion and provide any assurance, or a review conclusion on whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the PFRS.

Responsitilities of Monagement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financiol Stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, as well
as the accuracy and completeness of the information, in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary ta enable the pr?p_am_{iqn of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errnr’. b : !

*NBT20I80009

Your end-to-end Business Fartner”
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Practitioner’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to perform this compilation engagement [n accordance with Phifippine Standards on

Related Services 4410 (Revised) — Compilation Engagements, issued by Auditing Standards and Practices
Council of the Phifippines.

The objective of this compiiation engagement is to assist the management in presenting financial
information in the form of financial statements without undertaking to oblain or provide any assurance
that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financia! statements.

Practitioner’s Independence

I am independent and had no direct financial interest with respect to the Company, in all material
aspects of this compilation engagement during, the year ended December 31, 2017.

£P Certificate Mo, 0141184

Issuwed on Huly 12, 2015; valid until July 12, 2018
BOA Accreditation No, 8238

tssed on February 8, 2018; Valid sl suly 12, 2021
Tax Identification Ne, 273-144-666-0000
FTH Rio, 845 FA95

April 10, 2018

“Your end-to-end Businesy Bartner”
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directars
Prime Media Hoeldings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

mlakati City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company),
a subsidlary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statements of financial positian as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and stalements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, and notes to the
financlal statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

tn our opinion, the financlal statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performanice and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2015, and 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
{PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits In accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Fingncial
Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Fthics) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Muaterial Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 in the financis! statements which indicates that the Company is still exploring
for a new business, Its current activities comprise mainly of transferring assets related to its previous
development bank operation to BDO and PDIC, Thus, the Company has continued to incur losses resulting In
a2 capital deficiency of 114.1 million and B85.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
These events indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. The actions being taken by the Company are also discussed in Note 1.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Key Audit Matters

¥ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional ludgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017, These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whete, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Stockholders’ Commitment to Support the Company

The Company relies on its stockhoiders to sustain its operations and settle its liabilities. The sbility of the
Company to continue as a going concern depends primarily on the financial capacity and commitment of the
stockholders. Hence, this Is of significance to our audit, We reviewed management’s disclosures on actions
being taken by the stockholders and underlying documents. Further disclosures are included in Note 1 to the
financial statements.

Estimated Liabilities

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has estimated liabilities primarily related to its previous development
banking operations. This matter is of significance to our audit because it involves the use of estimates. We
have reviewed the reasonableness of management's estimates, Further disclosures are Included In Note 9,
Accriued Expenses and Other Current Lighilities.

Crther Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
ncluded in the SEC form 20-I5 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A {Annual Report} and
Annual Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2017, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors' report theresn. The SEC Form 20-1% , SEC Form 17-A and Annual
Report distributed to stockholders for the vear ended December 31, 2017 arp expected to be made available
o us after the date of this auditors’ report,

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmatian and we will not exprass any
form of assurance conclusion theregn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits or otherwise
ap pears to be materially misstater),

Responsibilfties of Manogement end Those Charged with Governonce for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for
such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
. statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the flnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
centinue as @ going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but te do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditars’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of sssurance, but |s not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to fraud
or effar, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our cpinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resufting from error, as fravd may invalye
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overside of internal cantrol,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the sudit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnlan on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal contral

=  Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. if we
conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial state ments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our
opinlon. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a golng
COncern,

" Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achleves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findi ngs, including any significant deficiencies in Internal contral
that we Identify during our audit.

L T
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditars’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be caommunicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would raasonably
be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this independent auditors’ report is Belinda B, Fernando.

ReyEes TACANDONG & Co.

BELINDA B, FERNANDO

Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, 81207
Tax ldentification No. 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation Ne. 4782; Valid until Decernber 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1022-4R-2 Group &
Valid untit March 15, 2026
BIf Avcrediiation No. DB-005144-008-2017
Valid unthl Jarwary 13, 2020
PTR Mo, B6I7558
lssued lanuary 3, 2018, Makati City

April 20, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Note oz 2016
ASS5ETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 21,720,131 #£2,701,9463
Recelvabies 5 2,453 432 4,516,267
Due from related partiss 13 12,420,000 40,000,000
Other current assets 208,259 B0R,905
Total Current Assets 16,802,522 48,02?,135_
Noncurrent Assets
Investment properties G 69,876,030 68,135,000
Avallable-for-sale (AFS| financial assets i 300,030 240,000
Equipment 2 1,538, 10 57,200
Total Noncurrent Assets 71,714,150 68,432,200
R&8,516, 72 F116,459,335
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liahilities
Accrued expenses and other current labilities g P193,071,685 ®103,160,882
Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax liability 12 9,556,800 9,034,500
Total Liabilities 202,628,445 202,195 382
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 10 714,664,8T8 714,664,876
Additlonal paid-in capital {APIC) 2,114,921 B&S 2,114,921 BeY
Deficit (2,943,798,4TB}  (2,915,362,792)
Cumulative unrealized gain on AFS financlal assets 7 100,000 40,000
Total Capital Deficiency {114,111,713) (85,736,047}

PBE,516,7.2

E116,459,335

See occompanying Notes to Finoncial Stotements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015
iINCOME
Gain on fair value changes of investment )
properties & P1,741,000 #1,501,000 B-
Rental 11 279,360 279,360 1,219,730
Recovery of accounts written-off 5 167,328 749,211 583,281
Interest income 2 13,474 44,054 208,813
2,201,162 2,972,625 2,011,824
EXPENSES
Managemeant fee 13 23,092,784 23,052,784 23,092,784
Provision for impairment losses 5 2,126,335 - o
Professional fees 1,799,004 2,907,299 2,514,319
Cwitside services 1,316,410 1,083,483 2,086,555
Taxes and licenses 459,978 654,931 1,840,613
Rent 13 186,695 272,783 1,245,714
Depraciation 8 05,010 17,160 11,440
Salaries and allowance - 130,998 199,466
Others 1,028,394 484,302 1.631441
30,105,614 28,653,740 32,674,375
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (27,904,452) {25,680,115) {30,662,551)
PROVISICN FOR INCOME TAX 12
Current 8934 205 36,080
Deferred 522,300 570,300 -
531,234 590,871 36,060
NET LOSS {2B,435,686) (26,270,986} 30,698,611
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ltem that wifl be reclassified to profit or loss
Unrealized gain {ioss) on fair value changes
of AFS financial assets 7 60,000 {10,000) 100,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (P28,375,686) (R26,280,986) (R30,598,611)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 15 {R0.04} {RD.04) (RO.05)

See pceompanyping Notes to Financlal Statements,
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015
CAPITALSTOCK id
Comman stock - #1 par value
Balance at beginning of year 700,298,616  PG98,530,906  RGIR 930,306
Conversion of preferred to common stock - 1,367,710 -
Balance at end of year 700,298,616 700,298,616 698,930,906
Preferred stock - B1 par value
Balance at beginning of year 14,366,260 48,559,000 48,559,000
Conversion of preferred to common stock - (34,152,740) -
Balance at end of year 14,366,260 14,366,260 48,558,000
714,664,876 714,664,876 747,485,906
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance 2t beginning of year 2,114,921,859 2,082,086,839 2,082,096,836
Conversion of preferred to common stoack - 32,825,030 =
Balance at end of year 2,114,921 869 2,114,921 869 2,082,096,839
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year (2,915,362,792)  (2,889,091,B06) {2,858,393,195)
Net loss {28,435,686) {26,270,986) {30,698 611)
Balance atend of year ¥ [2,943,798,478) (2,915,362,792) {2,B85,091,808)
CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED GAIN ON AFS
FINANCIAL ASSETS 7
Balance at beginning of year 40,000 50,000 {50,000)
Unrealized gain [loss) on fair value
changes 60,000 (10,000) 100,000
Balance at end of year 100,000 40,000 50,000
(F114,111,733) (REE,736,047) (B5%,455,061)

Lee groompanying Notes to Financial Statements.,

e



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Carp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Mote 2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTWT'I'IES
Loss before income tax {F27,904,452) (B25GB0O,115) [R30,662551)
Adjustments for:
Gain pn fair value changes of investment
properties g {1,741,000) {1,501,000) =
Depreciation B 9g,010 17,160 11,440
Interest income 4 {13,474} (44,054} (208,813
{iperating loss before working capital changes {28,562,916) (27,608,009} {30,859924)
Decrease [increase) in:
Receivables 2.062,335 {131,400 265,254
Due from related parties 27,580,000  (40,000,000) =
Cther current assets B00 EAE 21,074 {32,864)
Decrease in accrued expenses and other current
liabifities {88,237) {2,828,203) (6,288,313}
Met cash generated from {used for) operations £80,728 (70,546.538) (36,915,847}
Interest received 13,474 44,054 Z08,E13
Income tax pald (8,934) (20,571) {26,060)
Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities 505,268 (70,523,055}  {36,743,094)
CASH FLOW FRORM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisition of equipment 5 {1,577,000) i {85,800)
MET DECREASE IN CASH (981,732) (70,523,055} (36,828,834)
CASH AT BEGINMNING OF YEAR 2,701,963 73,225,018 110,053,912
CASH AT END DF YEAR F1,720,231 #2,701,963 R73,225 018

See accomponying Notes to Finoncial Statements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc, (the Company)} was incorporsted and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963. On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company's articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media industry. On
March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company's corporate life for another
50 years,

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company's
shares of stock. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly

listed,

The Company is a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp. (the Parent Company), a holding
company registered and domiciled in the Philipgines.

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed to transfer assets and labilities arising from its
development bank operations to Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. {(BDO} and Philippine Deposit insurance
Corperation [PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Company has liabilities arlsing from the MOA which pertain malnly to the estimated transfer
taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to BDD/PDIC and other related liabilities

[sec MNote 9).

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the three years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were approved and authorized for Issuance by the Board

of Directors (BOD) on April 20, 2018,

Status of Operations
The Company is still explering for a new business. its current activitles comprise mainly of

transferring assets related to its previous developrment bank operations to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting in a capital deficlency of R114.1 million and
#85.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operations. The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of B34.2 millien into common stock in 2016, converied
their advances of R600.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused capital aggregating
£179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency. On December 1, 2017, the
Company submitted an application to the SEC for the Company's equity restructuring to reduce the
capital deficiency.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company's equity restructuring to reduce its deficit as at
December 31, 2016 from B2,915.4 million to ®800.5 million by applying its APIC amounting to
E2.114.9 million,



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards {PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financfal Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements. This financial reporting framework inciudes PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee,

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All values represent absolute amounts except otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for its investment
properties and AFS financial assets which are carried at fair value. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valvation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservabie inputs.

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the falr value of an
assetor 2 liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a falr value hierarchy based on
inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

¢ level 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities,

s level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements oh a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of falr value disciosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lizbility and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring falr values is included in Notes 6, 7
and 16.



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financlal year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017:

Amendments to PAS 7, Stotement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiotive — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from fina neing activities.

Amendments 1o PAS 12, Income Toxes - Recognition of Deferred Tox Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at
fair value and the fair value is below the asset's tax base (e.g. deferred tax asset related to
unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value), as well as certain other aspects of
accounting for deferred tax assets,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Company. Additional disciosures have been included n the notes to
financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS in Issue But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effactlve for the year ended December 31,2017
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFRS 5, Financiel instruments — This standard wili replace PAS39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS 9. It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilitios,
impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value {through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
ciassification by reference to the business mode| within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics,

For financial lisbilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in falr value of a financial liability desighated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is recognized In other comprehensive income {rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates
an accounting mismatch,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit loss” model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a cantract. It will no longer be
necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized,

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better refiect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-

financlal risk exposures,

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,



* Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property - Transfers of Investment Property — The
amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, investment property {including assets under
construction and development} should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change in use of a property has oceurred.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 -

« PFRS 16, Leases — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its related interpretations. The most
significant change introduced by the new standard Is that almost all leases will be brought onto
lessees’ statement of financlal position under a single model {except leases of less than 12
months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between opeiating and
finance leases, Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing clrcumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional

disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes a pa rty to the contractual provision of a financial instrument.
Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value, In the case of regular way purchase or sale
of financial asset, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, Is done using trade date accounting.

Initial Recognition. Financlal assets and llabilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is the
fair value of the consideration given {in case of an asset} or recelved (in case of a liability}. The initial
measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL, includes transaction
cost.

“Doy 1" Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same Instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables Include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes tho
difference between the transaction price and fair value {2 “Day 1" difference) in the statement of
profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deemed the
transaction price as the best estimate of falr value and recoghizes “Day 17 difference in profit ar loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 1" difference,

Classification. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: (a)financial assets at FVPL, (b) held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, (¢} loans and
receivables and {d} AFS financial assets. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as
efther financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities at amortized cost. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acguired or incurred and whether
or not the instrurnents are quoted in an active rarket,

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have financial assets and liabilities at
FVPL and HTM investments.
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AF5 Finoncial Assets.  AFS financlal assets are nonderivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. These are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions,

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets is subsequently measured at falr value. The
unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets are reported in the
statements of comprehensive Income and in the equity section of the statements of financial

 position. These changes in fair value are recognized in equ'inr until the investment is sold, collected,
or otherwise disposed of or until the investment Is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are inciuded in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company classified its proprietary membership share as
AF5 financial assets,

Loans and Receivobles. Loans and receivahles are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as AFS
financial assets or financial asset at FYPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if
maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assets,

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
teking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction cost which are
directly attributable in the acquisition of the financial instrument. The amortization Is included in
profit or loss,

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this category includes cash, receivables {excluding advances to
officers, employees and service providers) and due from related parties.

Other Financiol Liabilities ot Amortized Cost. Financial Habilities are classified in this category i
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the Hability. These
include liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue
costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the Nabilities are
derecognized, as well as when there is amortization process.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this category includes accrued expenses and other current
liabilities (excluding statutory payables),

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabllities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
position If, and only If, there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognized amounts
and there |s an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements where the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position,



Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financlal
asset or group of financlal assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
impaired if, and only If, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
eccurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred “loss event”} and that loss event {or
events) has an Impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financlal
assets that can be reliably estimated.

The carrying amount of the impaired account Is reduced to the extent that it exceeds the asset’s net
realizable value, Impairment losses are recognized in full in profit or loss. Ifin a subsequent period, the
amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased because of an event occurring after
impairment was recognized, the decline is allowed to be reversed to profit or foss to the extent that the
resulting carrying amount will not exceed the amortized cost determined had no impairment been

recognized.

Loans and Receivable. The Company assesses at each reporting date whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no ohiective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for Impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor's ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues o be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an Impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the |oss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Time value ig
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carrying amount of the
assel shall be reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of loss shall
be recognized in profit or loss.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impalrment loss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reduced by adjusting the allowance account., Any subseguent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortized cost at the reversal date,

AFS Financial Assets. For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment would
include a significant or profonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any Impalrment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit ar loss,
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases In fair
value after impairment are recognized directly In the other comprehensive income and presented in
the statements of changes in equity.
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Derecognition of Financlal Assets and Liabilities

Finoncial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets} is derecognized by the Company when:

& the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

® the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without materlal delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

* the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred contral over
the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
d pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset Is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pav.

Financial Liabifities. A financlal liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognized in profit or loss,

A modification Is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
fiability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying amount of the orlginal liability and
fair value of the new liability is recognized in the staternents of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets mainly consist of prepayments which reprosent oxpenses poid in advance and
recorded as assets before these are utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered
by the payment and charged to profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be
realized for no more than twelve months after the reporting dote are classified as other current
assets. Otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.



Investment Properties

Investment properties, accounted for under the fair value model, are property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative PUrpOses.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount inclides the cost of replacing part of existing Investment properties al the lime that cost |s
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date as determined by independent
appraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there Is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupled property becomes 2n
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy on
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use,

Investment properties are derecognized when efither they have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanenty withdrawn from use and no further economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment properly
is recognized In profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Equipment
Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any,

The initial cost of equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributabie costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the eguipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
computer equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of
equipment is recognized {f It is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognized.

When parts of an item of equipment have different usefui fives, they are accounted for as separate
items {major components) of equipment,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the equipment of
o years,

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from equipment.



When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impalrment [n value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting pain or loss
Is credited to or charged against current operations.

impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that nonfinancial assets
may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. |f any such indication exists and if the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, nonfinancial assets are written down to its recoverable amount,
which is the greater of falr value less cost to sell and value In use. The fair value less cost to sell is
the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm'’s length transaction. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pretax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Impalrment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such Indication exists,
the recoverable amount |s estimated. A previously recognized impairment |oss is reversed only if
there has been a change In the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount, However, that Increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

Eqjuity

Capita! Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued,

APIC. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recoghized as APIC, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated
as deduction from APIC,

Deficit.  Deficit represents the cumulative balance of the Company’s results of operations net
dividends declared, if any.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue s recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Rental. Rental income is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease.

Interest Income. Interest income s recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset,

Recovery of Accounts Written-off and Other Income. Income from other sources is recognized when
the amount is actually received,

Expense Recognition
Expenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upon receipt of
goods, utilization of services, or when the expense Is incurred.
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Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement Is or contains a lease is based on the substance of

the arrangement at the inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a speclfic asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

8. there isa change In contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term:

c. there |5 a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarlas (a), {c) or (d) and at the date of
rencwal or extension perlod for scenario (b).

Operoting Lease - Company as o Lessor. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks
and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the lessed asset and
recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Operating Lease - Company os a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are clagsified as operating lease. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a stralght-line basis over the lease term.

income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount is the one that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax {MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax
and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not
recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, a1 the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or ioss,

Deferred tax Is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted
of substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax llabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Value Added Tax {VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

+ where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense Item as applicable; and

* recelvables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of "Other current
asset” account in the statements of financial position.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the year attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the year, with
retroaciive adjustments for any stock dividends declared or stock split.

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common stock
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common stock.

Where the loss per share effect of potential dilutive common stock would be anti-dilutive, basic and
dituted loss per share are stated at the same amount.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components, The Company has only one segment as
holding company.,

Related Parties

Parties are considered 10 be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to contro! the
other party or exerclee cignificant influence over the other party in maring financial and operating
decisions, Parties are also considered to be related ¥ they are subject to commen control or
commaon significant Influence.
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Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are made using the best estimates of the amount required to settle the obligation and
are discounted to present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in
profit or loss in the period they arise.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes

to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Even r the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's financial position at
the end of reperting period (adjusting events) are reflected In the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when

material,

Significant Judgment, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PERS reguires management to make
Judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.
The judgment and estimates used in the financial statements are based upon management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date. While the Company belicves
that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materlally affect the estimated amounts.
Actual results could differ from such estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or In the perlod of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgment

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgment, apart frem those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recoghized in the financial statements,

Assessing the Company’s Ability to Continue gs @ Going Concern, The Company has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital deficiency of ®114.1 million and 85.7 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 20186, respectively. Management believes this trend to continue for the
twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Note 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial support to the Company while new business opportunities are not yet available,
Based on this, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.
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Classifying Financial Instruments. The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity Instrument, The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position.

The Company classified Its proprietary membership shares as an AFS financial assets {see Note 7),

Accounting for Lease Commitments - Company as o Lessor, Management exercises judament in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease are retalned by the Company, Lease contracts where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

The Company, as a lessor, has entered into propetty subleases where it has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of those properties, As such, the lease
agreements are accounted for as operating leases,

Rent income amounted to RD.3 million, R0.3 million, #1.2 million and in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 11).

Accounting for Lease Commitments - Company as o Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has various
operating lease agreerments. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of ownership
related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the lease is accounted for
as an operating lease,

Rent expense amounted to £0.2 millicn, 0.2 million and RL.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 11).

Classifying Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties. The Company determines
whether a property gualifies as investment property. In making its judgment, the Company
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process,

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes, If these portlons cannot be seld separately, the property is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether
anciliary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as Investment property. The
Lompany considers each property separately in making its judgment.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounted to R69.9 milllon and R68.1 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively {see Note 6).

Evalucting Contingencies. The Company is a party to cartain lawsuits or claims arising fram the
ordinary course of business. However, the Company’s management and legal counsel balieve that
eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect of the
Company's financial statements.
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Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabllities within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimating Licbilities Related to Previous Development Bank Operations. The estimated liabilities
related to previous development bank operations of the Company is based on the management’s
best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred to settle the obligation.

The liabilities arising from the MOA amounted to B171.1 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
{see Note 9),

Estimating Impairment Losses on Receivables and Due from Reloted Porties. The Company
maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to provide for potential
uncollectible receivables. The fevel of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of
factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
length of the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor's payment behaviour and known
market factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtful of
collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and establishes a provision
considering, among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

impairment losses on receivables amounted to #2.1 million in 2017. Allowance for impalrment
losses amounted B62.4 million and RED,3 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The carrying amount of receivables amounted to R2.5 million and B4.5 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively {see Note 5).

Determining Feir Value of Investment Properties. The Company engaged an independent appraiser
to determine the fair value of its investment properties. In 2017 and 2016, the fair value of
investment properties was based on the valuation performed on March 1, 2018 and April 3, 2017,
respectively. Management evaluated that the fair value of investment property determined on
appraisal date approximates the falr value as at reporting date since there were no significant
changes in the condition of the property and economic environment between thase dates. The fair
value was determined using the market data approach In 2017 and 2016. Market data approach
involves the comparlson of the land to those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the
appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive
at the market value by considering the location, size, shape, utility, desirability and time element.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value of investment properties
are discussed in Notes 6 and 16,

Gain on fair value changes which was recognized in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted 1o R1.7 million and #1.9 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying value of
investment properties amounted to #69.9 million and R68.1 million as at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively (see Note 6).

Assessing Impairment of Nonfingnicial Assets, The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

* signhificant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
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» significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
or
= slgnificant negative industry or economic trends.
No impairment losses were recognized In 2017, 2016 and 2015,

The carrying amount of the Company's nonfinancial assets are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Investment properties 6 B9, 876,000 R68,135,000
Equipment 8 1,638,190 57,200
Other current assets 208,354 808,905

Assessing impairment of AFS Firancial Assets, The Company treats AFS financial assets as irnpaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the falr value below its cost or where
other objective evidence of impairment exists, The determination of what Is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgment. The Company treats “significant” generally as 20% ar more and
“prolonged” as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. In addition, the Company
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted instruments and the
future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted instruments.

No impairment losses were recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015. The carrying amount of AFS
financial assets amounted to £0.3 million and R0.2 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
(see Note 7).

Assessing Realizabifity of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficlent taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized,

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to ®44.6 million and #36.2 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management believes that there will be no sufficient
future taxable profits against which these deferred tax assets can be utilized {see Note 12).

LCash

This account consists of:

2017 2016

Cash on hand R5,277 BG 277
Cash in banks 1,714,954 2,696,686
F1,720,231 B2 701,963

Cash in banks earn interest at prevalling bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash In banks
amounted to P13,474, 244,054 and P208,813 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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5,

Recelvables

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Loans receivable R62,277,740 862,277,740
Advances to officers, emplovers and

service providers 2,126,335 2,134,335

Rent receivable 11 453,932 381,932

64,858,007 54,794,007

Less allowance for impairment losses 62,404,075 60,277,740

2,453,932 P4,516,267

Loans receivable are related to the Company’s previous bank operations. The unimpaired balance of
loans receivable amounting to R2,0 million is left under an escrow fund as at December 31, 2017 and
2016.

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliquidated, noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties to PDIC and BDO. These are liquidated
upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted,

Movements in aliowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2017
Advances to
officers, employees

Loans receivable and service providers  Rent receivable Total

Balante at beginning of
year RG6D,277,740 P- - ¥50,277,740
Frovision - 2,126,335 - 2,126,335

Balance at end of year RB0, 277,740 B2,126,3315 - BE2,404,075

No impalrment loss was recognized in 2016 and 2015.

The Company recovered some accounts written-off in prior years amounting to B0.2 mitlion,
RD.7 millien and BO.6 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

investment Properties

Movements in this account are as follows:

2017 2016

Cost R3R,020,000  R3IE 020,000
Movemnent on fair value changes: il

Balance at beginning of year 30,115,000 28,214,000

Gain on fair value change 1,741,000 1,201,000

Balance at end of year 31,856,000 30,115,000
R69,876,000  P68,135000
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This account represents parceis of commercial land located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held for
capital appreciation,

The fair values of the investment properties as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are based on
valuations performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment
properties were arrived at using the market data approach. In this approach, the value of the land
was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity. This requires
the adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a
common denominator. This was done by adjusting the differences between the subject property
and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The properties used as bases of
comparison are situated within the vicinity of the subject property. The comparison was premised
on the factors of location, size, and shape of the lot, time element and others.

Market Data Approach

Significant Unobservabile inputs 2017 2016
Frice per square meter R20,000-822,857 #35,000-R40,000
Value adjustments -5% to 75% -5% to 40%

The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per Square Meter: estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
location, area, shape and time element.

Volue Adfustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values In approximation to the
investment property taking into account the location, size, architectural features and etc.

Market Data Approach involves the comparison of the land to those that are more or less Jocated
within the wvicinity of the appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings
Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, size, shape, utility,
desirability and time element

Senasftivity Analysis. The factors considered in determining the fair value of the property are the
(a} location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood, (b} size, {c) physical
characteristics such as shape, topography and road frontage; and (d) time element.

AFS Financial Assets

The Company’s AFS financial assets consist of a club share in Valley Golf & Country Club. The fair
value of the club share is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market.
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Movements in this account are as follows:

2017 2016

Cost

R200,000 £200,000

Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes

Balance at beginning of year 40,000 50,000
Fair value change 60,000 (10,000)
Balance at end of year 100,000 40,000
o 300,000 R240,000
8. Equipment
Movements in this account are as foliows:
2017
Computer Transportation
Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year R85, E00 - RES,EDO
Additions - 1,577,000 1,577,000
Balance at end of year 85,800 1,577,000 1,662,800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 28,600 - 28,600
Depreciation 17,160 78,850 86,010
Balance at end of year 45,760 78,850 124,610
Net Carrying Amount F40,040 ¥1,498,150 E1,538. 150
2016
Computer
Equipment
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year 285 800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of vear 11,440
Depreciation 17,160
Balance at end of year 28,600
Net Carrying Amount BS7.200
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Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2017 2016
Liabilities arising from the MOA #171,104,972  R171,105,292
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443
Rental deposits 5,972,642 5,972,642
Accrued expenses 1,763,356 1,868,469
Others 3,245,232 3,225,036

#193,071,645 PR193,160,882

Liabilities arising from the MOA pertain to estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to
the transfer of assets from its development bank operations to BDO/PDIC and other related
liabilities, primarily from unremitted collection of assigned receivables and sale of foreclosed
propertles for the account of PDIC (see Note 1). This account also includes provision for probable
losses to cover estimated losses from claims. As allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Lighilities and Contingent Assets, certaln information s not disclosed until final settlerment as it
might prejudice the Company’s position on the matter,

Dividends payable pertains to the Company's dividend for cumulative, nonparticipating, nenvoting,
redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared pricr to the Company's incurrence
of deficit,

Rental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Company’s previous tenants.

Actrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees and association dues,
among others, These are normally settled in the next financial year.

Others Include statutory payables and refunds of tenants related to the Company's previous
operations. These are noninterest-bearing, unsecured and are normally settled in the next financial
year or upon demand.

1109

Capital S1ock

The movement in this account are as follows:

2017 FER d0I%
Number of Mumber of Mk of
Shares Amaunt Shares Amourn Shhres Amous

Comman stock - #1 par walue =
Authorizar 3,000,000,000  F3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000  F3O00COO00C 3000000000 83000 000,000
Subscribed-
Bakince ot beginning of yeas: 700,298,616 F00,298.616 B4, 530,906 GER 53906 BEE 930,900 S e R
Lonwarsion of prefered

e Leammeraon siock - - 1,367,110 1,367,710 - -

Ralance at end of year 700,288,616 #700,298,616 TO02B8G1E  PTO0, 206,606 BUEBI0O0L  BE2E 530005
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2017 2016 2015
Humber of Wumbar of Mumber of
Shares Amount Shares Amrount Shares Amaunt
Pridermd stock - B par vabin
Authorzed 2, 000,000,000 F2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000  ®2,000,000,500 700,000,000 P2 000,000,000
Issued and outstandiag:
Brlanca st baginning of yaar 14, 366,260 14,368,260 45,559,000 48,552,000 48,550,000 48,550,000
Coaversion of oreferred
to commen stock - = [#4,192,740) (34,192 740) - -
Balance at end of year 14,366,260 14,366,260 14,365, 260 14,366,260 42,555,000 48,558,000

714,664,876 R714,654 876 114,664,870 P7Ld BEAETE 747,480,200 P77 AB0 30%

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

Cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting, redeemable and convertible at the option of the
Company,

Cash dividend rate initially at 4.50% per annum based on par value, which shall be automatically
adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price,

The Company may, at any time at |ts option, wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
preferred stock plus accrued dividends thereon. When such call for redemption is made, the
holders of the preferred stock may opt to convert the preferred stock to cammon stock,

On October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stockholders of preferred shares of extending
the maturity of shares for another five years for a 2% additional dividend on the 9% regular

dividend.
11, Leases
a. The Company entered inte cancellable lease agreements for a period ranging from ane to
thirteen years renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties and subleased the properties
under the same terms. One of the leased and subleased properties that commenced on
January 16, 2003 was cancelled on August 31, 2015,
b. On Aprii 1, 2015, the Company entered into a canceliable lease agreement with Bright Kindle

Resources & Investments, Inc. for its office space for 2 period of nine months up to
December 31, 2015,

Rent income amounted to R0D.3 million, BD.3 million and #1.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Rent receivable amounted to 0.5 million and #0.4 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively {see Note 5).

Related rent expense amounted to R0.2 million, #0.3 million and B1.2 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
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12, Income Tax
The provision for current intome tax represents MCIT in 2017, 2016 and 2015,

The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory income tax rate to the provision for
income tax shown in the statements of comprehensive income follows:

2017 2016 2015
tncome tax computed at statutory tax rate (PE,371,336) {R7,704,035) (F3,188 765)
Movement In unrecognized deferred tax
assets 8,429,944 8,308,122 9,297,469
Tax effects of;
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 474,258 = 5
Interest income already subjected to
final tax (4,042) (13,216} 162,644)
Mondeductible expense 2,410 = -
R531,234 k590,871 P36,060

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following temporary differences since the
management believes that it may not be probable that future taxable profits will be available to
altow utilization of the following tax benefits:

2017 2016
NOLCO R215R806,327 B17 544,832
Allowance for impairment losses on recelvables 18,721,223 18,083,322
MACIT 65,565 135,017

44,593,115  #36,163,171

The deferred tax liability as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 pertains to the gain on fair value
changes of investment properties amounting to R9.6 million and R9.0 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

As at December 31, 2017, unused NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
income are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Expired  Balance
2017 2020 F27,524,558 B~ 27,524,558
2016 2019 27,625,169 = 27,625,165
2015 2018 30,871,364 - 30,871,364
2014 2017 1,319,575 1,319,575 =

R87,340,666 £1,319575 86,021,051
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As at December 31, 2017, unused MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
liability are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Expired Balance
2017 2020 F5,934 - £8,934
2016 2019 20,571 -~ 20,571
2015 2018 36,060 - 36,060
2014 2017 78,386 78,386 -

' £143,951 B78,386 £65 565

13. Related Party Transactions
Qutstanding balances and transaction with related parties are as follows;

Parent Company and Other Related Party

Mature of Amount of Transaciion Outstanding Balance
Transaction 2007 2016 2017 2016
Due from related parties
Parent Company Advances B20,000,000 RB4G,000,000 Pe,120,000 ®40,000.000
Entity Under comman
control Advances 12,300,000 - 6,300,000 -
F12,420,000 P40,000.000
Rontrade
Parent Company Manaﬂ_ﬁ-r‘nenl fee #23,092,784 £23,002 784 L B

Outstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on demand and settlement
occurs in cash, The Company has not made any provision for impaitment losses relating 1o the
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting date by taking
into consideration the financial position of the related party and the market at which the related
party operates,

On December 22, 2015, the Company entered into a management agreement with the Parent
Company 10 oversee and supervise the Company’s business matters until December 31, 2017.

Key Management Personnel

The Company has no key management personnel. Its accounting and administrative functions are
provided by a related party at no cost to the Company.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Inthe normal course of the Company's prier eperations, there are gutstanding commitments,
pending litigations and contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statemente.
The Company does not anticipate significant ipsses as a result of these transactions.
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b. As discussed in Note 1, under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDO/PDIC, the Company agreed to transfer its assets and liabilities from its development banking
operations, The Company agreed to hold BDO free from any contingent claims, labor and minority
Issues and concerns arising from related assets and lisbilities still managed by the Company unti!
these are assumed by BDO, Further, the Company agreed to indemnify BDO against losses, claims
and damages BOO may suffer in the event such contingent claims, labor and minority issues affect
BDO's rights under the MOA.

The Company has accounted for separately, assets from its development banking operation
pursuant to the MOA. It still has in its possession titles of real estate properties from its
development banking operations with an apgregate fair value of R527.8 million and 542 .4 million
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Moreover, the Company has cash of
#13.9 million as at December 31, 2017 arising from the proceeds of sale of a property,

c. The Company is a defendant in legal actions arising from normal business activities. Management
believes that these actions are without merit or that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from
these will not materially affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

15;

Loss Per Share

The basic and diluted loss per share were computed as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Net loss {#28,435,686) (P26,270,9B6) (R30,698,611)
Less dividend rights of preferred stockholders

for the year 1,581,671 1,581,671 5,346,164
Lass attributable to cammaon stockholders {30,017,357} (27,852,657 (36,044,775}
Divided by weighted average number

of common stock 700,298,616 699,728,737 698,830,906
Lass per share - basic and diluted {RO.04) {R0.04} T (RO.O5)

The conversion feature of the Company's preferred stock has potential antidilutive effect
(i.e., It decreases lpss per share). Therefore, diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share.

1b.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash in banks, receivables {excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers), due from related parties, AFS financlal
assets, accrued expenses and other current Habilities (excluding statutory payables).

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing the risks,

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a

counterparty default on its obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from
cash in banks and receivables (excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers) and
due from related parties. The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets,
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The aging analyses of financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017
Melther Past Past Due But Not impalred
Due Nor Lexs Than Past Due and
impalred 30 Days 31-60 Days impaired Total
Cash in baiks P1,714,954 B- B- B- R1,714,954
Receivables® 2,453,932 - - 60,277,740 62,731,672
Cue from related parties 12,420,000 - - = 12,420,000
AFS financial assets 300,000 - = - 300,000
R16,B65, 886 R= p= PL0, 277,740 FI7.166,626
fExcivding odvances o officers, employess and service providers ainounting to 821 mition.
2016
MNeither Past Past Due But Not impaired
Dhe Mor Less Then Past Due and
Impaired 30 Days 31-60 Days Impalred Total
Cash in banks B2, 690,680 B- - R= #2.6%0,686
Receivables® 2,381,932 - - &0 271,740 62,659,672
Due from related partles A0 0G0, 000 - - - 40,000,000
AFS financial assals 240,000 - - - 240,000
B45318.61R B— B- RO, 240 R105 506,358

MExcluding advonces (o officers, employers ond service providens omounting b B2.1 milfen.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets, The credit guality of the Company's financial assets are being
managed by using internal credit ratings such as high grade and standard grade.

High grade - pertains to counterparty who I not expected by the Company to default in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure Is minimal,

Standard grade - include financlal assets that are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require some reminder follow-ups to obtain settlement from the
counterparty.

The Company has assessed the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as high grade.

Receivables are classified as substandard grade since these are receivables from third parties. The
Company assessed these receivables as uncollectible and provided allowance for impairment lpsses
amounting to P60.3 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to mest

all foreseeable cazh needs.

The Company also maintains 2 balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. The policy of
the Company is to first exhaust lines available from affiliated companies before local bank lines are
avalled of. The Company seeks to manage its liquid funds through cash planning on a weekly basis.
The Company uses historical figures and experiences and forecasts from its cash recelpts and
disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaiuates its
projected and actual cash flows, It also continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets for
opportunities to pursue fund raising activities,
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, accrued expenses and other current liabilities (excluding
statutory payables) amounting to #193.1 million and P193.2 million, respectively, are generally due
and demandable.

Fair Values
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s assets and

liabilities measured at fair value and the corresponding fair value hierarchy:

2017 2015

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Armnount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash P1,720,231 F1,720,231 F2,701,963 B2,701,963
Receivables® 2,453,932 2,453,932 2,381,932 2,381,237
Due from related parties 12,420,000 12,420,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
AFS financial assets 300,000 300,000 240,000 240,000

#16,894,163 16,894,163 45,323 895 F45,323 Bo95

Nonfinancial Asset
investment propertics RG69,E76,000 FE69,875,000 FBE,135000 FGE, 135,000

Firancial Liabilitles
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities** #£183,051,7235 #153,051,236 #153,154,189 #193,154,189

*Excluging edvences (o officers, smalovees and sprvice providers,
" *Excluding staturory povables.

Current Financial Assets and Libilities. The carrying amounts of cash, receivables {excluding advances
from officers, employees and service providers), due from related parties and accrued expenses and
other current liabilities {excluding Statutory payables) approximate their fair values due to the short.
term nature and maturities of the transactions. The fair value measuremnent of current financial assets
and liabilities is classified as Level 3 {Significant unocbservable injits).

AFS [nvestment. The fair value of this financial asset is determined by reference to guoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the reporting date.  The fair value measurement of
AFS investment is classified as Level 1 (Quoted in an active market).

Investment Properties. The fair value of investment properties |s determined based on valuations
perfermed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised velue of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach. The fair value measurement of investment
properties is classified as Level 3 {Significant unobservable inputs).

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability
to continue Its operations as a going concern and to maximize shareholder value. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payment
to shareholders, return canital to sharehalders, or issue new stock. No Charnges were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc, '
16th Floor, Citibank Tower

B741 Paseo de Roxas

Makat| City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company),
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 on
which we have rendered our report dated April 20, 2018,

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Compary
has 1,248 commeon stockholders and 265 preferred stockholders owning one hundred {100) or mare
shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & CoO.

BELINDA B, FERNANDO

Partner

CPA Certificate Mo, 81207

Tax Identification Mo, 102-085-538-000

BOA Accreditation Ne. 4782 Valid unti December 31, 2018

SEC Accredization No. 1027-A8-2 Group &
Walid uneh March 15, 2020

BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-004-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020

PTR Mo, 6607958
lssuend January 3, 2018, Makali City

April 20, 2018
Makati City, Metre Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMIMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc,

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Prime
Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at and for the
year then ended December 31, 2017 included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated
April 20, 2018. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken
as a whole, The accompanying supplementary schedules as at December 31, 2017 are the responsibility of
the Company's management. These supplementary schedules include the follawing:

= Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations

= Financial Ratios

* Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Avaitable for Dividend Declaration
*  Schedules required by Part Il of SRC Rule BE, as amended

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part Il, as
amended, and are not part of the financial statements. This information have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, including comparing such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respect in relation to the
financial statements taken as 3 whale,

REYES TacanponG & Co,

| ) M
BELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, 81207
Tax ldentification No. 102-085-538-000
BOA Accreditation Mo, 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accraditation No. 1022-AR-2 Group A
Walid untit March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-004-2017
Valid ursd January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 6607958
|ssued January 3, 2018, Makat| City

Aprll 20, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF

DECEMBER 31, 2017

EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

2 Not Not
Titte Adapted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conteptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics e
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Finandial Reporting Standards {PFRS)
Mot Mot
PFRS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Flrst-time A . N . :
PERS 1 (Revised) Irst-time Adoptien of Philippine Financial Reporting v
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for v
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and 7
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment * v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and 7
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settied Share- v
based Payment Transactions
FFRS 3 {Revised) | Business Combinations L
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint -
Ventures '
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts v




- et Not Not
PFRS Title OP1eC | Adopted | Appticable
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued W,
PFRS S ,
Operations
Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methads of Disposal v
PFRS & Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v ]
Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of rinancial v
Assets
Amentiments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial ,
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about v
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of o
Financial Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offse tting (
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitios
Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts v
Amendment to BFRS 7: Applicablility of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial v
Statements
PFRS & Operating Sepments v
Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating )
Segments
Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of .
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
Amendments to PFRS 10; Transition Guidance v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying iy
the Consolidation Exception
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements v
Amendments to PFRS 11; Transition Guidance v
Amendiments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acqulsitions =5
of Interests in Joint Operations
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ¥
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance v




PERS

Title

Adopted

Adopted

Mot

Not
Applicable

S

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12 Investment Entities: Applying
the Cansolidation Exception

4

¥

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard :

PFRS 13

Falr Value Measurement

Amendment ta PFRS 13: Short-term receivables and
Payables

Amendment te PFRS 13: Partiolio Exception

PFR5 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards [PAS)

PAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PAS 1 [Revized)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1; Puttable Financlal Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of [terms of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements for Comparative Presentation

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2

Inventaries

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errars

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11

Construction Cantracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlving Assets

Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealized Losses




|

Adopted Not Not
PAS Title pte Adopted | Applicable
PAS 15 Property, Plant and Equipment v |
1
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing v
Equinment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated /
Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 v
{Revised) Emplayee Benefits
Amendment 1o PAS 19: Defined Benefii Plans: v
Employee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rato: Regional Market 7,
lssue
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of #
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
| PAS 23 (Revised] | Borrowing Costs
PAS 24 {Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment o PAS 24: Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Atcounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
{A:j;iig " Separate Financial Statements v
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities ¥
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate G
Financial Staterments
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended)
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying ”
the Consolidation Exception




. Not Mot
BAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v

FAS 32 Financlal Instruments: Disclosure and Fresentation v

Financial Instruments: Presentation v

Amendments to PAS 32; Puttable Financial Instruments \ v
and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32; Ciassification of Rights Issues v

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and W
Financial Liahilities

Amendments ta PAS 32: Tax Fffect of Distribution to v
Holders of Equity Instruments

PAS 33 Earnings per Share o

PAS 34 interim Financial Reporting v

Amendment to PAS 34: Interlm Financial Reporting and v
Segment Information for Total Assets and {jabilities

Amendment to PAS 34; Disclosure of Information v
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount 7
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v

PAS 38 Intangible Assets v

Amendment to PAS 38: Revalustion Methad -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable 7
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial p
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Elow Hedge Accounting 7
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v

Amendments to PAS 35: Financial Guarantee Contracts v

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial 4
Assets




Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial s
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments PAS 39; Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to PAS 3%: Eligible Hedged ltems v
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
betwesn PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property v
as Investment Property or Owner-occupied Property
PAS 41 Apriculiure
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
Philippine Interpretations
Mot Mot |I
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Similar Ligbilities
[FRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar v
Instrumenrts
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a 7
Lease
ERIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, o
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
ERIC & Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market ”
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
FRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting In Hyperinfiationary Economies
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC—g: v
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes




tati Titl Adopted S e
Interpretations tle opte Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 14 PAS5 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, v
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendmants to Philippine Interpretations |FRIC- 14, /
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net investment in a Foreign Operation v
[FRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity -
Instruments
(FRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface -
Mine
IFRIC 21 Lovies v
-
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC
Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Sic-7 Introduction of the Euro v
<ic10 Guvern‘mend; .ﬂ‘:.s_s.u_stance = No Specific Relatian to P
Operating Activities
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
Sic 95 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
ar lts Shareholders
Evaluating the Suhstance of Transactions Invalving the
SIC-27 v
Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
sic-31 He'ﬂ?:nue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising v
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

Below is a schedule showing fi

2016

FINANCIAL RATIOS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

2017

nancial soundness Indicators for the year ended December 31, 2017 and

S 2016
Current/Liquidity Ratio 0.09 0.25
Current assets E16,802522 R48,027,135
Current liabilities 193,071,645 193,160,882
Solvency Ratio {0.14) {0.13)
Loss before income tax, depreciation, and
amaortization {27,808,442) (25,662,955}
Total liabilities (excluding deferred tax
liability) 193,071,645 153,160,882
Debt-to-equity Ratio {1.69) {2.25)
Total liabilities {excluding deferred tax
liability) 193,071,645 193,160,882
Total equity (114,111,733} (B5.736,047)
Asset-to-equity Ratlo [0.78) {1.36)
Total assets 88,516,712 116,459,335
Total equity {114,111,733) (B5,736,047)
Interest rate coverage Ratio = &
Pretax income before interest [27,904,452) {25,680,115)
Interest expense = i
Profitability Ratio - -
Met loss (28,435,686) (26,270,986)
Capital deficiency {114,111,733) (85,736,047)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY’S

RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at beginning of year

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties

Deferred tax liability at beginning of year

{#2,915,362,792)
{30,115,000)
9,034,500

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as adjusted to
avaiiable for dividend declaration at beginning of year

Net loss during the year closed to retained garnings

Gain on fair value changes of investment propertics

Movement in deferred tax liabilities

{2,936,443,292)
(28,435 ,686)
{1,741,000)
522,300

Total retained earnings (deficit) available for dividend
declaration at end of year

{P2,966,097,678)

Reconciliation:

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at end of year

(R2,943,798,478)

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties {31,856,000)
Deterred tax liability at end of year " 9,556,800 .
Total retained earnings (deficit) available for dividend

declaration at end of year (B2,966,097,678)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR.
6 PART Il OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2017
Table of Contents

_ Schedule - Description

A Financial Assets

B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related

Parties, and Principal Stockholders {Other than Related Parties)

C Indebtedness to Related Partles

D] Guarantees of Securities of Other |ssuers

E Capital Stock

F Congiomerate Map

Page

N/A

_N/A
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Iem 1. Financial Statements

The Unaudited Financial Stucments of Prime Media Holdings. Ine. as at Junc 30, 2018 {with comparative
Audited Statements of Financial Position as al December 31 2007y and for the three months and six
months period ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are in compliance with generally accepted accounting
principles and there were no changes made in accounting policics and methods of compulation in fhe
preparation of the imlerim financial statements.

Summary of statements of linancial position as at June 30, 2004 and December 31, 2017

.ﬁlr]ﬂ 30, 208 December 3 1.2017

{Unaudited) tAudited)  Inerease (decrease)
Amount  Percentage
. (P 000) (P O00) {1 (DY
Curreni assely 28,000 PlLOENE  PLLIYY IR R
Mancurrent assers 71,545 TH714 {1606) {0.23%)
Total Asscts o PY9,548 PEE.SIT  PILOZT  12.46%
Current Linbilitics ' 206,931 PIU3072  Pl3gse 7.18%,
Moneurrent Liahility 9,557 9.557 : -
216,488 202,629 13859 6.54%,
Capital Deficieney (116,940} (114112 (2528 i A8
ot Lizbilities and Capital Dficieiney ___ PO9568  PERSLT  PILDE)  [24s%

Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and six months period
ended June 30, 2018 and 20107

© For three monihs ended For six months ended
Jumne M), June 3,
2018 2007 2R 2017
(P 000) {POHE (1= 0y (PN
Revenues P35S (IR Pou2 TPidn
Expuenses 1,535 £ HI A3 13387
Cbossbeforets (e (6.255) (2,828) (13.241)

_Provasion for income tax g
Total comprehensive loss {P1,2208 iPn.255) (P2.528) "ﬁ""lj :14 I:l

e ey e A T - - e m—— - e e i i e B - e i

o



Summary of unaudited statciments of cash flows for the three months and six months period ended
Jume 300 2008 and 20107

For three months ended  For six months ended

June 3, Junie M
28 217 2018 2017
(P00 (o) (100 [PTHHY)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities P19.452 {1HLT53) 1897 (P LETE)
Net inercase (deerease) in cash 19452 (411753} 18.976 {1.478)
Loshatheginuing ofperiod 244 4LSTT 1T 2702
Sdshotendofporiod  ~ __ PI6I6  PUM 2069 PR

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition snd Resulis of Operation

The company has not been actively operating other than the activitics connected with the transfer of the
Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corparation {PIC) and the Bangko
Sentral oy Pilipinas {(BSP). The Company also continues to pursue the cleanup of its books and the
settlement ol its remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion from third
parly imvestors,

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Six months ended June 30, 2018 compared with sis months ended June 30, 2017

Results of operation for the six months ended Junc 30, 2018 and 2017 were net loss of P2.43 million and
PL324 million, respectively. As compared with same period last vear. net loss for the current period
declined by P1O41 million or equivaleni 1o 78 64%,

Significant changes in the income stalement accounts for the six months ended June 30, 201% versus the
same period Jast vear are as follow:

Ineome

a The Company’s income for the first hall of 2008 of PO.6O million is higher by POd4G million or
S12.01% compared with same period last year, This increase is pimarily due to the rental arising from
lease agreement entered o between the Compamy and  Mareventures Mining & Development
Corporation (MMDC). an entity under common control, 1o lease the formers tramsporialion cquipmenl
to the latter, for a fix consideration. The apreement commenced last Janary 7. 2018,

b. During the period, the Company has recovered PO.O3 million from account il has previously written off
{nil fast vear), which also contribited to the inercase in total income.

Expenses

Total expenses during the penod amounts (o P3 43 million., lower by P9.96 million or 74,384, sornpared
with same period last vear. The movement in expenses are attributable to the Ferllomwing:

a. Professional fees inercased by PO.6S million compared with samwe periodd Tast venr. Factors thal rosulted
to increase in this account are payments of various legal fees. and annual listing fee amounting 1o
").26 million,



b. The Company outsourced other activity during the period, resulting to inerease in Outside Services by
PO.othmillion compared with same period last vear,

c. Inerease i taxes and licenses of PO.23 mallion or [48.86%, is primarily duc to payment of real properiy
Taxus,

d. Depreciation expense during the period 15 higher by PO 16 million compared with same period last
vear, The increasc is atiributable to depreciation of the transportation cquipment which was purchased
by the Company in the Tatler part of 2017

¢. The Company has not renewed vet the management agreement with s Parcne Company (said
agreement 15 yet (o be discussed by management), resulling to o decrease of PULAS million or
ciuivalent to 10% (as this account 1s nil during the perod).

Three months ended June 36, 2018 compared with three months ended June 30, 2017

Results of operation for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2017 were not loss of 122 million
and P6.25 million, respectively,

Significant changes in the mcome statement accounts for the three months ended June 30, 2005 versus the
sanwe period last vear are as fallow:

lncome

a. The Company™s income for the seeond quarter of 2008 of 0031 million is higher by P17 million or
116.96% compared with same period last vear. This inerease is primarily due to the rental aresing lrom
lease agreement entered mito between the Comparsy and Mareventures Mining & Development
Corporation (MMDC), an entity under common control. 1o leage the farmer’s transporation equipment
to the latter, for a fix consideration. The agreement commenced kst January 7, 2018

b. During the period, the Company has recovercd P0.03 million from account it has previoushy writlen ofF
{ml last vear), which also contributed to the increase in lotal income.

4
Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounts 1o P13 million. lower by P4.86 million or 76.02% compared
with same period last vear. The movemenl in enpenses are aliributable to the following:

a. More outsourced service-related expenses were incurred during the period. resulling 10 increase in
Outside Serviees by POY2 million. compared with same period kst vear,

b. Compared with same period last vear. taxes and licenses is lower by POOR million, Mare real proporty
taxes were paid during sceond guarter last vear as compared this vear.

- Depreciation: expense during the period 15 higher by 0,08 million compared with same puriod lasi
vear. The merease is attributable 1o depreciation of the trnsportation equipment which was purchased
b the Company in the later part of 20017,

ol

d. The Company has nol renewed vel the management agreement with its Parent Company (saud
agrecment s yet to be discussed by management), resulting o a decrease of P3.77 million or
cauivalent to 100% (as this account i il during the period)

i



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total asscts of the Company as at June 30, 2008 of PY9.55 million is higher by P11O3 million compared
with December 21, 2017 balance. Movement is attnibuted {o the following:

e lush
Cash mcreascd by PIRYS million. The increase is mamly attributable o receipt of P20 million
from ils parenl company.,

ho Receivables
Increase w recenvables of P33 million or 13,54% 15 primanily due to vupaid rental from MMDC
{refor to analvlics on Income seciion o)

v Acharrees o reloded parivg
During the period. the Company received P23 million as payment of advances made to related
partics. The Company also received advances amounting to P20 million from paareni comprny

o (e cnrrent assely
Increase in other current assets is mainly due to recognition of Input VAT from purchases of
poods and/or services,

o hgapaeni
Drecrease in cquipment of POTT million i attributed to the depreciation recomized for the period,
No additions were made during (he period.

Fo D to parent company
see analytics on ¢ Advances fo relaicd poriies.

g Capital deficieney

The incrcase in capital deficiency of P2.83 million is mainly due to net Joss during the period.
The Company’s application for equity restrucluring to reduce its deficit as at December 312016,
by applying its APIC amounting to P2.11 million is approved last March 23, 2018 (sce Note 1),
henee, APIC as at June 300 2018 is alecady nil.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided by operating activitics for the six months ended June 300 2018 amoeunts 1o
P18.98 million, while cash used in operating activities in same period last vear was P18 million.

Inercasc in cash from aperating activitivs is the net result of the following;

@ Receipt of P23 million from related parties (pavment of advances) and 220 million from parent
campany.

= Payment of operating expenses during the perod.

[



HOREZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

Decomber 310

June 3, 2018 2017 Increase (Decrensg)
R B . (Unaudited) __ (Audited)  Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assels
(‘ash P20.695,670 BL7M0.23] PIROTAA39 102 07%
Recenvables 2,786,132 2433032 332200 3.54%
Advances to related partics 4,046,938 [ 2420 000 (B.3T3062Y  (h7 472%)
Other current assels 471,672 208,350 3515 126.38%
Total Current Assels 28,000,412 [6.802,527 11197 800 ﬁ:":_ﬁ;l'_'.-_EL_
Moncurrent Assets
Investment propertics 69,876,000 R
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets RIIRELH 300 (00 - -
Equipment 1.371.916 [L334 190 (166.280)  (10.81%)
Total MNoncurrent Assels TL547.910 T1TEE 101D t]f:(:_jﬁt}:l“m{-ti.?..?'}-h}

_ P99.548.322

PEES16.712

PILOALGLD  12.46%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Linbilifies
Acerued expenses and other eurron)

lHabuhitics PI23051,400 PYI0T7].645 (P)245) (0.0 %0
Ductoparenteompany 13880000~ 13880000 100.00%
Totlal Current Liabilitics 206,931,400 u3O7lods | | 3859755 T 8%
Moncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax labiliy 9,556,800 9556800 000 - ot
_Jotal Liabilities 216,468,200 202628445 13 BI9T35  6.84%
Capital Deficicncy
Capital stock 714,664,876 714 604, 876

Additional paid-in capital {APIC)

Dicficit

Cumulative unrealized pam an AFS
linancial assets

(831, 704.754) (2043 TR AT8) 2 112,003 724

1O O

201402 8560

FORL A

(2001921 8a0 ) (100005,
(71.75%

Total Capital Deficiency

(116,939,878)

(1L 111.733)

(2828145} 248%

a R T

99,548,322 P¥R.16.712

PILOGL6I0  1246%

P

e B




FINANCIAL INDICATORS

NLI im.q (R —
Uulck Lm-:.Li -
Currenl assels
1 ul.,i] assels

Jmm .}I_'I 2{113

___(2.828.145)

21,456,502
25,000,412

Cur rent liabilitics
Total Jm{uhtm

99,545 3:2

2!?&,93!,4[!{} i

rﬁtﬂ(‘khﬂldbr‘- Ll’.L]ﬂ'-

Pre I"u red aLm,L

{ Number of prelerr, h.d wlmm outs |1_d3ng
i

(_ uirent I-‘\_;[I_i_:_]if

f:l-ul-it--lﬂ Equity Ra Ranu_f :,
Assel 1o Equity | Ra.hu }_.-"I_

e canr

"_~I_'u_t_‘n_hcr L‘JI"anmun ﬂlmru. nuhmudmn

14,366,260 |

700,298,¢

216488200 |
 (116,939,878))

14,366,260 |

June 30, Zi!l?

(13.240.951)

24,450
37685013

106108, m';_
NN 30

(OR976,997)
14,306,260

U298 616

_14.366.260

{}Hﬁ
(1.851)

{0B31)

Rmu 1 o .l'";‘:.k&_."l‘:'-h'r

I?_t_mun o Iqum M
Book ‘l.-" e ! por s simn,

- A0
S 0.024

{l} 188) per qlmrn

l:urlimga."l 085 ek share (hasic) trailing 17
_...months

Toral Habilities divided by cquity
Tosterl cosvets elpviced by copeiiy

[P S PO AT

Net incomie (loss) divieled fe averaoe ase
Net income fluss) divided by averaee cguily

Crrrent asyers divided by curveni lobiliies

I

Total commmen stocklodders eqnine divided

23

Trailine 12 months Net dncome {loss)
dividernds patd on preferved stock .
A B o coniion shores oristanding

OTHER INFORMATION

lesy

weislied

(0.026) |___ "

0102
(207

(Lo7y
{0019y

{1).200)

[i] 12) pur. alnn.__

A0

There are no known trends, demands. commitments, events ar unceriaintics thai have a materinl

relationships of the company with unconsolidated entitics, or other persons were created during

i.
ipact on the Company s liquidity.

b, There are no events that will trigger dircet or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
Company.

c. There are no maternal off<halance sheet transactions, arcatgements, obhipabions, and  olther
the inferim period.

d. There are no material commitments for capital cxpenditures during the interim period.

C.
miaterial impact on net sales/ revenues! income from contineing aperations,

r

ope rations,

There are no known trends. events or uncertaintics that have or are reasonably expeeted to have a

There is no significant income or expense that did not anse from the Company’s continu ing



£ There s no scasonal aspeet that had a material ¢ffect on the financial condition or results of
oporation

PART U - OTHER INFORMATION

The issucr may, at its option, report under this ilem any information not previously reporled in a report on
SEC Form 17-C. It disclosurc of such information is made under this Part 11, it need not be repeated ina
report on Fonn 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respeet (o such information or in
a subscquent report on Form 17-0)

PART HL - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Liquridity Ratio
a. Cuorreni Ratio

Total Curremt Assets/ Tolal Current Liabilities = ¢, 33

b, Cuick Ratio
Ouick asset / Total Corrent Liabilitics = 0,104

Solvency Ratio

a.  Debt Ratio
Tetal liabilitics / Total assots = 2175

B Dbt to Lguity Ratio
Tuotal liabilities f Sharcholder's Equity = (1831

Profitability Riio
a. Returm on Equity Ratio
Mt loss / Average sharcholder’s cquity = 0,024

b, Returm on Assets
MNet loss ! Average Total asscts = (0.030)

€. Asser Lo Eguity Ratio:
Total Asscts £ Stockholders™ Eguily = (0.851)

o Assel Turnover
RoevenueTolal Assels = 0,006

LO)

Book value per share
stockholder's equity - prefirred stock/No. of common shares outstanding = (11 §5)



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Reoulation Code. the issuer has duly caused this report 1o
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2008

Decomber 312017

_ Notu {Unaudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assels
Clash 4 20,695,670 1720231
Receivalbles 3 2,786,132 2453032
Advances to related parties 12 44146938 124200000
Other current asseis 471.672 208,354
Toial Current Assels 28,000,412 ]ﬁ.H[}E_S.}g
MNoncarremt Assety
Investment proportics 5 69,876,000 (R T M)
Available-for-sale (AFSY fimneial assels 7 300,000 VRN
Equipment " _ 8 1371910 1.538.190
Total Moncurrent Assots - o 71,547,910 TL714.190
) N e 199,548,522 PRESI6.TI2
EIABILITY AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities
Aceroed cxpenses and other cursent labilities Y 193,051,400 PIUR 07645
Duc fo parent company i A8 e ARUOGOM
o oMl Cuyrront Liabilities 206931400 193071643
MNoncurrent Liability
Dicferred tax liabiloy 9556800 Y 350,800
Total Linbilitics 216,485,200 . 2(3.”._!':2?5.4—4:;’-_
Capital Deficiency
Capatal stock ¥ T14,664,870 T L tvind B T
Additional paid-in capital (APIC) - 201492 864
Dieficit (831,704,754) (2943, 708 478)
Comulative uealized saio on AFS financial assets i) 100,000 100G
Total Capital Deficicney -  A116,939,878) (H11,733)
94,548,322 Pl 5160712

[ = R a ne

S cecampealn ing Neotes o Frieeseiied Sttt s,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Managemeni Corp. )

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 36,

i Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

INCOME

Renial Ll 286,071 P30 0HD PaT72,143 P34 AR
Recovery of accounts weitlen-off 28,203 - 28,203 ;
Interost income .. 1 ARCAN 16 6,335
. : 314625 145015 601,592 146013
EXPENSES

Professional fees 246,025 2ikd 92 1,552,547 RO B
Outside services 1,069,224 145 952 1,134,377 533014
Taxes ad hicenses 42.743 [ 1Y BEnA 392327 157052
Depreciation 4 83,140 4,240 166,280 H.SKI
Renl 11 19,6749 L8510 50,348 R T )
Management fee 12 = 5773 100 - 1.540,3072
Others 73913 39,891 124,858 135.728
. " CLAMTM 639705 3,429,737 13386960
NET LOSS i — (220,099 (P6. 254 600) {tg._,ﬂiﬁ,l-il-ﬂ] ﬁ;!.’i?%{]‘)‘? [y

_____(roon2) (PU.ODY) (PD0.004) (PILOLY)

New oo ing Netes fo Piaanoiod Siatemens,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.,

(A Hullﬂilliﬂfj'ﬂgl:ﬁvﬁi Business Management Corp)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

CAPITAL STOCK
Common stock - P1 par value

Preferred stock - 1 par value

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

Balanee at beginning ol the vear, as
previously reported

Application of equity restructuring

DEFECIT
Balance at beginning of year, as
previously reported

2008 2017
PT00.298,6160 TR AL
14,306,260 1<k 366, 26l
714004876 T1A atel 8706
2U14.921.809 211482 86v

(2,943,798,478)

(B25,876,609)

Balance at end of period

(2,828,145)

L A2114,921.869) el
2114921 869

(2,913,362,702)

(2.915.362.792)
(13,240,950

(831,704,754)

(2.928.,603.742)

CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED
GAIN ONATFS FINANCIAL
ASSETS

_(P116,939.878)

40,000

(POR 976,947}

S IO S0 1O bt SR,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended June 30,

LN 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Lass belore income tay (1P1,220,009)  {P6, 234 690)

Adjustments for;

Depreciation B 83,140 4 200

Interest income : {351) (5.335)
Operating loss before working capital changes (LI3TINY (6.255.739)
Decrense (increasa) in

Receivables (292,400} (72,0000

Advanees (o related partics 7020000 (24 Oy

Other current assels (1192307 (11.546.30])
Increase (decrease) in;

Accrued expenscs and other current hiabilitics 337 (2. 884,283
______ D o parenl company i 13,850,000 3t
Mot eash generated Trom (used Tor) operations 19,451,397 (b0, T58 099
Interost reccived e -« 351 3338
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 451,748 (40733 074)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,243.922 41577524
CASH AT END fli PERIOD 20,695,670 1'HZ4.iﬁL

R SR S o

i e Ja R LT SO

Bovt e g Nedes to Sinasciod Saatemions,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Six Maonths Ended June 30,

Mk 2018 27
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before income 1ax (PLE2E145) (113.240,951)
Adjustments {or;
Depreciation L] 166,280 BRIl
lnterest income 4 (1.2406) {6.335)
Operatmg loss before working caprtal changes (2,663,1117  (13.238.706)
Decrease {increase) in:
Rececivables (332,200) L1100l
Advances to related partics 8,373,062 IR IR
Ol currend asscts (263.313) (11 5346.392)

lncrease (decrease) in;

Acorued cxpenses and other current labilitics {20,245) 2 800,248

Dug to parcnt company N 13,830,000 o
Mt cash generated From (uscd for) operations 18,974,193 (LREZ RAE)
Interest received " B N,
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 18975439 {1.877.513)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,720,231 2701 963
CASH AT END OF PERIOD PRO695670 PR244S0

S aecnpoiiiinge Neotew o il Sty



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdimgs, Inc, (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Seourities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February f, 1963, On October 1. 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company s articles of incorporation. changmy its primary purpose
from a development bank 1o a holding company and (o hold wvestments in the media sty O
Mareh 4, 2003, the SEC approved the extension of the Company s corporate life for another 50
VRIS,

On July 9. 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange. Ine. approved the public listing of the Company's
shares of stock. As at December 310 2017 and 2016, 663.713 458 Company shares are publicly
listed,

The Company is a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp, (the Parent Company), a
holding company registered and domiciled in the Philippines,

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed Lo transfor assets and linbilitics arising from it
development bank operations to Banco de Oro Unibank. Ine. (BDOY and Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDICY under 2 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) As af December 31,
2007 and 2016, the Company has liabilitics arising from the MOA which pertain mainly to the
cstimated transfor taxes and registration fees related to the transter of assets w BDOPDIC and
other related habilities (see Note U3,

The fmancial statements of the Company as ol Docember 300 2007 and 2006 and for the three
years ended December 312007, 2016 and 2015 were approved and authorized for issuance by the
Board of Dircctors (BODY on Apnil 20, 2015,

Statns of Operations

The Company is sull exploring for a new business. Hs current activitics comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its previous development bank operations to BDO and PDIC, Thus,
the Company has continued to ineur losses resulling in a capital deficiency of P14 million and
PS5 T million as at December 310 2017 and 20060, respectively. The stockhalders, however. have
continued to provide the necessary finamcial support o sustiin Company operations,  The
slockholders converted their preferred stock of P34.2 million inlo common steck in 2016,
converted ther advances of POINLS million 1o addittonal capital m 2014 and infused capiial
apgregating. P179.0 million in 2004 and 2003 ta reduce the capital deficiency. On December |
2017, the Company submitted an application to the SEC for the Company s equity restructuring (o
reduce the capital deficiency.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company”’s equity restructuring to reduce its deficit as
at December 31, 2016 from P2.915 4 million o PROD.S million by applving its APIC amonnting to
P21 nullion,

On July 10, 2008, the Company has entered nto a Compromise Agreement with the Baneko
Sentral ng Pilipinas for the full and fnal settlement of its case. Upon exeention ol the Compromise
Agreement. the partics have apreed (o deliver all documents and perform all acts necessary (o
cause the relevant court to render a udgment based on the smd Aprcement and terminate the ease,

Ii:l



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Prepavation

The financial statements have been prepared in complionee with the Philippine Finanel
Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standords Council and
adopted by the SEC. mcluding SEC pronouncements.  This financial reporting framework
ncludes PFRS. Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and  Philippme Interpretations  from
Intermational Finaneiyl Reporting Interpretations Commitice.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are preseated in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company’s functional
curreney. All values represent absolute amounts except otherwise staled.

The financial statements have been prepared on a bistorical cost basis. except for its investment
propertics and AFS financial asscis which are carricd at fair value. Historical cost is generally
bascd on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for asscty,

Fair value is the price that would be received Lo sell an asset or paid to transfor a liability 1n an
orderly fransaction between market partivipants at the transaction date,  The Company uscs
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
avaulable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relovant observable inpuds and minimizing
the wse of unabservable inputs

The Company uses markel observable data to a possible extent when mueasuring the fair value of
an assel or a liability,  Fair values aie categorized into dilferent levels moa Fair value herarchs
based oninputs nsed in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level |- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilitics.

e Level 2 - Valvation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant 1o the fair
value measurement is diveetly or indirectly observable,

#  Luvel 3 - Valuation techimques For which the lowest level mpat that is significant 1o the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and labilitics that arc recogmized in the financial statements on o reeurring basis. the
Company determines whether transfors have vcewrred  between levels in the hicrarchy b
re-assessing calegorization (based on the lowest fevel mput that 15 significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value discloswies, the Company has deterimed classes of assets and
linbilitres on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabiliy and the level
of the fair value hicrarchy as explaned above,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is cluded in Notes 6,
Tand 15



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial vear, exeept for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 201 7:

e Amendments to PAS 7, Staiement of Cash Flows - Divcloswre Initiotive - The amendments
require entitivs to provide information that enable the users of financial statements o evaluate
changes in liabilites ansing from financing activitics.

¢ Amendments to PAS 12, Jincome Tuves - Recogrition of Deferved Tax Assets for Unrealized
Lasses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an assel 1s measured
al fair value and the fair value is below the asset’s tax base (e.g. deferred tax asset related to
unrcalized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value), as well as certain other aspecls
ol accowiting for deferred tax asscis

The adoption of the faregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Company.  Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to
finaneial statcments. as applicable,

New and Amended PFRS in Issue But Not Yet Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not vel effective for the vear ended
December 31, 2017 and have not been applicd in preparing the financial statements are
summarized below,

Effective for amwal periods beginning on or after January 1. 2014:

¢ PERS 9, Foancial Iisénomerrts - This standard will replace PAS 39, Finaacial Distrements:
Recogtition and Measnrestent (and all the provious versions of PFRS ), 1L contains
requirements Tor the classification and  mensurement of financial assets and  Tinancial
labilitics. impairment, hedge accounting and derecopnition.

PERS 9 requires all recogmized financial assets to be subscquently measured at amortized cost
or far value {through profil or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by refercnce to the business model within which they are held and its contractual
cash fHow characteristics,

For financial liabilitics. the most significant effeet of PFRS Y relates to coses where the fair
value option is taken: the amount of change i fare value of a financial liability desipnated as
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to changes in the erodit nisk of
that hability is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless
ihis creates an accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial asscts, PFRS ¢ introduces an “expected eredit loss™ model
based on the concepl of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract. It will no

longer be necessary for there 1o he objective evidence of impairment before a eredit loss is
recognized.

For hedge accounting. PFRS @ introduces 2 substantial overhaul allowng financial statcments
to better refleet how risk management activitics are undertaken when hedging financial and
non-Finaneial risk cxposures

The derccogniiion provisions are carricd aver aimost unchanged from PAS 34



*  Amendments 10 PAS 40, favestment Property = Transfers of Investment Properiv — The
amendments clarify that transfers to. or from. investment property (including assets under
construction and development) should be made when, and only when. there is evidence that a
change i use of a property has oceurred.

Effective for annual periods begimning on or afier Janpary 1, 2009

e PERS I6. Leases  This standard replaces PAS 17, Leaser and its related interpretations. The
most significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will be
brought onto lessees™ statement of financial position under a single model (exeept leases of
kess than 12 months and leases of low-value asscts). chiminating the distinction between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting. however, remains kargely unchanged and the
distinetion between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PERS is pot
expeeted o have any material effeet on the financial statements of the Company. Additional

disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assels and Liabilitics

Pate of Recogmion. Financial assets and labilities are recoenized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of a financial instrument.
Faneial mstruments arc imtiably recognized at fair value, In the case of repular way purchase o
sale of financial assel. recognition and derccognition, as applicable. is done using trade date
accounting,

Taitial Reeognition. Financial assets and liabilitics are recopnized initially at fair value, which is
the fair value of the consideration given (in casc of an asset) or received (in case of a liability).
The imtial measurement of financial instroments, except for those designated at FVYPL, includes
transaction cost,

“Day 17 Differences, Where the transaciion in a non-aetive market is different fram the fair value
of other observable current markel trmsactions in the same instrument or based on 2 valuation
technique whose variables melude only data from abservable market. the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and far valoe {a “Day 17 difference) in the statement of
profit or loss, In cases where there is no observable data on mception. the Company deemed the
transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recopmzes “Duy 17 difference in profit or
foss when the inpats become observable or when the instrument is dereeognized.  For each
transaction.  the Company determines the approprisic method of recognizing the “Day 17
difference,

Classificatione. The Company classifies ils financial assels at mitial recognition under the
following catcporics: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b held-to-maturity (HTM) investinents. (¢}
loans and receivables and (d) AFS financial asscts.  Financial liabilitics. on the other hand. are
elassificd as cither financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial habilitics at amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial nstruments were acquired or
ncurred and whether or not the instruments are quoted i an aciive market.

Ag ok June 300 2018 and December 310 2007, the Company docs nel have financial assets and
liabilitics at FYPL amnd HTM mvestments.

ARN Vingncind Avsers. AFS Tnmenl assets are nondecivative linancial aesets that are either
designated in this catepory or not classified m any of the other categorics. These are purchased
and held indefiitels. and may be sold in response to liquidity reguirements or chanpes 1 market
conditions.
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After imitial measurement. AFS financial asscts is subsequenthy measured at fair value,  The
unrcalized gains and Josses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets arc repored in
the statements of comprehensive income and in the equity scetion of the statements of financial
position. These changes in fur value are recopnized in equity until the investmentl is sold.
collected, or otherwise disposed of or until the investment is determined to be inpaired. at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported 0 equity are included in profit or loss.

As at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company classiticd its proprictary membership
share s AFS financial assots.

Loaits end Receivables, Loans amd reccivables are finaneial assets with fived or determinable
payinents and fixed maturities and that are not quoted in an active market. These are nol entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as
AFS financial asscts or financial assct at FVPL, Loans and receivables are ineluded in eurrent
assets i maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classificd as
noncurrcnt asseis,

Aficr initial measurement, loans and reccivables are subsequently: measured at amorbized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowanee for imparrment. if any,  Amoriized cost s
caleulated by taking into account any discount or preminm on acquisition and any transaction cost
which are dircetly attributable in the acquisition of the financial mstrument, The amartization is
meluded i profit or loss,

As at Jung 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this categony includes cash, reecivables {excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers) and advances to related parlics.

Orer Fissancial Liabidities ot Amortized Coss, Financial liabilities are classified in this category if
these are not eld for trading o not designated as at FYPL upon the inception of the Liability,
These include habilitics arising from operations or through borrawing,

Atter initial recopmition, other financial labilitics are subsequently measurcd al amortized cost
usmg the eftfeetive inerest method.  Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into aceount am
related issue costs, discount or prenmum, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabakities are derccognized. as well as when there is amortization process,

As at June 30, 2008 and December 310 2007, this calesory includes acerued expenses and ather
current labilities (excluding statutory pavables). and due o parent company.,

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial asscts and liabilitics arc offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
position if, and only it there is a currently enforceable Tepal right 1o offsel the recopnized amounts
and there is an intention 1o settle on a et basis or to realize the asset and scitle the liabality
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netling asreements where the relafed
assels wnd liabilines are presented gross i the statements of financial position.

Fmpairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidenee that o financial
wssel o group of hnancial assets s impaired, A financial asset or group of financial asscis is
decmed impaired if, and only if. there is objective evidence of impairment as o resull of one or
more events that oceurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (an inenrred “loss event”) and
that loss cvent (or events) has an inpact on the estimated fiouee eash Aows of the lnancial asset or
aroup of financial asscts that ean be reliably estimated.

The carrving amount of the impaired account is reduced 1o the extent that it exceeds the asse’s net
realizable value. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profit o loss, 1T in o subsequent petiod,
the amount of accumulated impainment Josses has decreased beenuse of an event oecurring afler



imparrment was recognized. the deeling is allowed to be reversed to profit or loss to the extent that the
resulling carrving amount will not exceed the amortized cost determined had no mnprment been
recopnized.

Loans and Recevable, The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether abjcetive evidence
of impairment exists ndividually for financial assets that are imdividually significant. or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. 1 it 15 determined thal no
objective eyidence of impairment exists for an individually assossed linancial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is inclided in a gronp of financial assets with similar eredit risk
characleristics and that group of financial asscts is collectively assessed for imparment.  Those
characteristics arc relevant o the estimation of future cash Hows for groups of such assers by
being indicative of the debtor’s ability Lo pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assefs being evaluated  Assety that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
imparrment loss is or continues 10 be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
Unpairment

I theru is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been weurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the differcuce between the asset’s careving ameunt and the present value of (he
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assels” original effective inlerest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is nol material, The carrving amount of
the assct shall be reduced direetly or through the use of an allowance account, The amount of 1oss
shall be recopnized in profit or loss,

I, m a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases becanse of an
event oceurring aller the impairment was recogaized. the previously recomized imprirmenl loss is
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.  Any subscquent reversal of an impairment loss s
recognezed v the profit or loss, Lo the extent that the earryving amount of the asset does not exceed its
amartized cost at the reversal date

APN Mnancia] Assets. For cquity imvestments classified as AFS financial assets, impairmen
would include a significant or profonged decline in the fair value of e investments below their
cosl, Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair valug, less any impairment loss on that financial
assct previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equits’ investments are not reversed theowgh profil or loss, Increnses in
fair value after impairment are recognized divectly in the other comprchensive income and
presented i the statements of changes in equity.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Piteciod Assets. A financial assel (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part ol a
group of similar financial assets) is derceognized by the Company when

¢ the right to reccive cash flows from the asset has expired:

* the Company retaing the right to receive cash flows from the assel, bul has assumed an
obligalion to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement. or

» the Company has transferred its right to reecive cash flows from the asset and cither () has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets. or (b) has veither transterred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets. bul has transfered control over
thi: assot,

When the Company has transferred its right 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arangement. and has neither tansterred nor retained stbstantially all the risks and
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rewands of the asset nor trnsfurred conteol of the assel. the asst is recognized to the extent of the
Company s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the Form of o
guarantee over the transterred assel, if anv. is measured at the lower of ariginal carryimng amount of
the asset and the maximom amount of consideration that the € ‘wmpany could be reguired to pay,

Pancial Liabiduies. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabitity
is discharged or cancelled or has oxpired. Where am existing financial liability is replaced by
another fram the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as a derccognition of the
origmal liability and the reeognition of the wew liability, and the difference in the respuctive
carrving amonnt is recognized in profit or loss.

A madification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash Nows under the new
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original cllective inferest rate,
is different by at least 1% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the
original liabiliy,

The fair value of the moditied fimaneial liability 15 determined hased on its expected cash Tows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market, The difference between the earrying amount of the original hability and
Fair value of the new lability is recopnized in the statements of comprehensive income,

On the ether hand. i the difference does not meet the 10% threshold. the orgmal debt is oo
extinguished bul mercly modified. In such case, the carrving amount is adjusted by the costs or
fees pard or reccived in the restructuring,

Other Currend Assets

Other current assets mainly consist of prepayments which represent expenses paid in advance and
recarded as assets before these are wtiliacd . Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered
by the payment and charged to profit or loss when incurred, Prepayments that are expecled Lo be
realized for no more than twelve months after the reporting date are classificd as other current
assets, Otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assots,

Investment Properties

Investment propertics. accounted for under the Tar value model, are property held cither 1o cam
rentals or for capital appreciation. or both. but nat for sale in the ordmary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative PUrposes,

Investment propertics are measured initially a1 cost. including transaction costs. The carrving,
amount includes the cost of replacing part of existing investment propertics at the time that eost s
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of dav-to-day servieing of
investment propertics.  Subsequent to initial recognition. investment propertics are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporiing date as determined by independent
appraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment propertics are
included in the profit o loss i the year in which they arise.

Transiirs are made 10 or from investment property only when there is o change in wse. For a
transfer from imvestment property to owner oceupicd property. the decmed cost for subseguent
accounting is the fair value af the date of ehange in use. I owner occupied propurty bucomes an
ivestment propery. the Company accounts for such properly in accordance with the poahicy on
property, plant and cquipiment up to the date of ehange in use.

Investment properties are derceagnized when cither they have been dispased of or when the
investment propertics are permanently withdrawn from use and no further cconomic benefit is
expected from its disposal.  Any pain or foss on the retirement or disposal of an investment
prapeny s recognized in profit or loss in the vear of retirement or disposal,
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Equipment
Eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value. if any,

The inital cost of cquipment comprises its purchase price and any dircethy atiributable costs of
bringing the asset to ts working condition and Jocanon for its intended use,

Expenditurcs imcurred after the equipment have been pul into operation, such as repairs.
maintenance and overhaul costs. are normally charged 1o operations in the vear the costs are
menrred. In situations where it can be elearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an inerease i the future ceonomic benefits expected 1o be obtained from the use of an item of
computer equipment bevond its originally assessed standard of performance. the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of cquipment,  The cost of replacing o component of an item of
cquipment is recognized if it is probable that the future ceonomic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrving amount
of the replaced component is derceopnized.

When parts of an tem of equipment have different uscful Bives. they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of equipment,

Depreciation is caleulated on a straighi-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the eipiienl
of 3 years.

The estimaled uscful lives and methad for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of cconomic benefits
lrm equipment,

When asscts are retived or otherwise disposcd of, the cost and the related acounulated depreciation
and any impanment in value are removed from the accounts, Any resulting gain or loss is eredited
fo o charged agaimst corent operations.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indieation that nonfinancial
assels may be impaired when events or changes in eircumstances indicate that the carrving amount
of an assel moy not be recoverable. I any such indication exists and il the carrving amount
exeoeds the estimated recoverable amount, nonlinancial asseis are writlen down o is reeoverable
amouiit. which is the greater of fr value less cost to sell and value inuse, The fr value less cost
o sell as the amownt obtunable from the sale of an assct in an arm’s length transaction.  In
assessing value in use. the estimated fulure cash Gows are discounted 1o present value using a
pretax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time vahee of money and the
risks speeific lo the assel. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at cach reporting date as 1o whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impmirment losses may no longer exst or may have decrcased. 1 such indication
exisls. the recoverable amount is cstimated. A previoushy recopnized impairment loss s reversed
only 10 there has been o change in the estimates nsed Lo determine the asset’s recoverable amoun
since the last impairment loss was recognized, Insuch instance, the carrving amount of the asscl
i5 increased 1o its recoverable amount,  However, thal increased amounl cannol excecd the
carrving amount that would have been determined had no impairient loss been recognized for the
assct i prior years, Such reversal is reconnized in profit or loss.

Egnity
Capirad Seock. Capital stock is measured at par value Tor all shares issued,

APIC, Proceeds andfor fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recogmzed as APIC, Incremental costs divectly attributable 1o the ssuance of new shares are



treaded as deduction from APIC,

Deficit. Deficit represents the comulative balance of the Company’s results of operations 1l
dividends declared, if anv.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that cconomic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measurod reliably, Ruvenog is recopnized as follows:

Kemtal - Rental income is recopnized using the straipht-line method over the term of the lease,

fmterest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it scerucs, taking o account
the effeetive vield on the assel,

Reeovery of Assets Weitten-off and Cther Tncome. Income from other sources is recognized when
the amount is actually received.

Expense Recognition
Expenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upont receipt of
goods, utilization of services, or when the expense is ineurred,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement s dependent on
the use of o specific assct or assets, and the arrangement comvevs 4 right to use the asse, A
reasscssment is made afler inception of the lease only i one of the following applics:

a. there is a change in contractual tenme. other tan a renewal or extension of the arrangement:

b a renewal option is exercised or extension pranted. unless the term of the renewal or extension
wiss mtiadly inelueded m the lease erm;

o there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is depetdent an a specificd assct:
or

d. thereas a substantial change lo the assct.

Where reassessment is wade. lease accounting shall conmmence or cease from the date when the
change i circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a). () o )y and at the date of
renewal ar extension period For scenario (b,

Clperating Lewse - Company ov ¢ Lessor. Leases where the Company retains substantially atl the
risks and benefils of ownership of the asset are classificd as operating leases. Initial direet costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrving amount of the Jeased asset and
recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Operatinig Lease - Company s o Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asst are classiticd as operating lcasc, Opcrating leasc pavinents
are recosnezed as an expense in profit or loss on a straighl=line basts over the feage term.

Income Faxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to b
recovered from or paud to the taxation avthorities. The tax rale used 1o compute the amount is the
one that has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferved Tax, Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the

tax bascs of assets and habilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Defurred tax Babilitics are recognized for all taxable temporany difforences,  Deferred tax assels
arc recognized for all deductible temporary differenees, carrvforward benefits of any unused ax
credits from the exeess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the repular corporate
income tax and any unuscd net operating loss carrvover (NOLCO). to the extent that it is prohable
that txable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carrviorward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.  Delerred tax.
however. is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an assct or liability in o
transaction thal 1s not a business combination and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable prafit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss cxeept to the extent that it relates to a business
combination. or tems dircetly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income,

The carrving amount of deferred tax asscrs is reviewaed at cach teporling date and reduced o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
parl of the deferred tax asset o be wilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed af
cach reporting date and are recogmzed to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
prodit will allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rate that are expeeted fo apply to the
peried when the asset is realized or the lability is settled. based on tax rate that has been enacled
or substantively enacted wl the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current
tas assels against current tax labilitics and the deferred taxes relate Lo the same taxable entity and
ihe sanc laxation authority,

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Roevenues, expenses and asscts are recopnized net of the amount of VAT, creepl:

s where the tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is nol recoverable Trom the tasation
authority, in which case the tax is recogmized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or
as part of the expense tom as applicable; and

s pecetvabios and pavables that are stated with the amonnt of tax included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation anthoriy is included as part of “Other
current assel” account i the staterments of Anancial position

Luoss Per Share

Basic loss per share is compuled by dividing net Joss for the vear attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstandang during the vear, with
retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared or stock split.

Diluted loss per share is caleulated by adjusting the weighted average number of commaon stock
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common siock,

Where the loss per share effeet of patential dilutive conmman stoch wounld be anti-dilutive. basic
amd diluted loss per share arce stated al the same amount.

Segment Reporting

An operating segiment i a component of the Company that engages i business activitics Trom
which it may carn revenues and incur expenses. including revenues and ipenses that relate lo the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components, The Company has only one segment as
holding, compan




Related Partics

Partics are considered to be related il one party has the ability, dircetly or indireetly. to control the
other parly or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  Partics are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influcnee,

Provisigns

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present oblipation (lezal or constructive) as o
resull of o past event. it is probable that an outflow of resources cmbodying ceonomic benelits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the
ubligation.

Provisions are made using the best estimaies of the amount required to setthe the abhigation and arc
discounted to present values using a pre-tux rate that reflects current markel assessments of i
time value of money and the risks speeific to the oblication, hanges m estimates ae reflected in
profit or loss in the period they arise.

Contingencics

Contingent liahilities are not reecosnized in the financial statements, They are disclosed i (he
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an oulllow of resources embodving
ceonomic benefits is remoie. Contingent assets are not recopmized in the financial statements bu
are diselosed when an mflow of ceonomic benefils is pmhdhh,

Events afier the Reporiing Datle

Post vear-end events that provide additional information about the € onpany s financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting cvents) are reflected m the financial statements, Post vear-
end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.
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Sipntficont Judgments, m'rnunti:-ng Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires marmgement o make
Judgment, estimates and assomptions that affeet the amounts reported i the financial statements,
The judgment and estimates used in the fimancial statements are bascd upan management s
cvaluation of relevant facts and cireumstances as at the reporting date, While the € cnpany
bilicves that the assumphions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or signiticant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts,
Actual resubts could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions Lo
accounting cstimates are recognized 1 the period i which the cstimate is revised if the revision
altects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods i the revision affects
both current and Tuture poriods.

Judomenis
I the process of applving the Company’s accounting policics. management has made the

fallowing judgment. apart from those involving cstimates, which have the most sipnificant cileet
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements,

Assessing the Company’s Ability to Contimie av a Going Ceircern, The Compamy has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital doficiency of P14 L million and PS5.7 million as at
Decembor 31 2007 and 2046, respectively, Management belioves this trend fo continue for tic
twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Note 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial support 1o the Company while new business opportunitics are not vet
available,  Based on this. the financial statements are propared on a goinp concern basis of
accounting,
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Classifing Financial fnstruments. The Company classifics a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on mitial recognition as a financial asset, o financial Lability or an equits
mstrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of
a financial assct. a financial Lability or an cquity imstrument. The substance of 2 financial
instrument, rather than its Jegal form, governs 1ts classification in the statements of fagmeial
position,

The Company classificd its proprictary. membership shares as an AFS  financial assets
{soe Mote 7),

Acennnting for Lease Commitnenis: Company as o Lessor Muanagement exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the signiticant risks and benefits off ownership of the assels
held for lease are retained by the Company, Lease contracls where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased tem are accounted for
as operating feases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.,

The Company. as a lessor, has entered into property subleases where it has determined that o
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of those properties. As such, the lease
agreements are accounted lor as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to PU6 million and PO million in 201% and 2007, respeetively (see Note
1)

Accounting fir Leave Compntmenis: ooy ax ¢ Lessee. The Company, as a lessce, has
various operating lease agreements, ‘The Compamy has determined that the risks and benelits of
ownership related to the leased propertics are retained by the lessor. Accordinghy. the lease is
accowed for as an operaling leasc.

Rent expense amounted to P06 million and PO T million in 2008 and 2017. respectively (see
MNote 11},

Classifving Ivestment Properiies and Owner-Cecupried Propertics. The Company determines
whether o property gualifics as mvestment property. In making its judament. the Company
considers whether the properly generates cash flows lareely independent of the other asscts held
by an entily,  Owneroccupicd propertics penerate cash Aows that are attributable not only o the
property but alse to the other assets used inthe production or supply process,

Some propertics comprise a portion that is held to cam rentals Tor capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of gouds or services or for administrative
purposes. 1 these portions cannot be sold sepurately . the property is aceounted for as an
mvestment property only i an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for admmnistrative purposcs, Judgment s applied in deteromining whether
ancillary scrviees are so signilicant that a property does not qualily as investment property,  The
Company considers cach properly separately in making its judamicni,

The carrying amount of investment propertics amounted to P69.9 million as at June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2007, respectively (see Note 6),

fvaluating Contingencies. The Company is a parly (o certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business. Mowever, the Company™s management and lepal counsel belicve that
eventual liabilitics under these lawsuits or elaims, if any. will not have a material effeet of the
Company’s [inaneial stibements,

Estimales and Assumptions

The key estimates concerning the Tuture and other kev sources of estimation uncertainty al the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of cavsing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis
of asscts and labilities within the nest financial vear, are doseribud below.
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stiniaiing Liahilisies Relaied to Previons Development Bank Ohperavionts. The estimated
liabilities refated (o previous development bank operations of the Company g based on the
managenient s best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred 1o settle the obligation,

The labalitics arising from the MOA amounted to P171.1 million as at Jung 300 2008 and
December 31, 2007 (see Mote 9,

Bstimating Impairment Losses o Receivables and | hwe from Reloted Parties. The Company
maintains allowance for impairment losses al a Jevel considered adequate 1o provide for potential
uncolleetible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of
factors that affeet the collectibility of the accounts, These factors include. but are not limited L,
the length of the Company's relationship with the debtor. the debtor’s payment behaviour and
known market factors. The Company identifics and provides for specific accounts that arc
doubtiu! of collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining reecivables and establishes
a provision considering. among others, historical colleetion and wrile-oft expericnee.,

Impatrment tosses on reecivables amounted to P21 million in 2017, Allowance for il
kosses amounted P62.4 million as at June 30, 201% and December 31. 2017, The carrving amount
of receivables amounted to P28 million and P2.5 million as at June 30, 2018 and Docember 31,
27, respectively (sec Note 5).

Determisting Feir Value of  bvestiment Properies. The Company engaged an independent
appraiser to delermine the fair value of its investment propertics, In 2007 and 2006, the fair value
of investment propertics was based on the valuation performed on March 1 2008 and April 3,
2017, respeetively. Management evaluated that the fhir value of mvestment property determined
on appraisal date approximates the fair value as al reporling date sinee there were no significant
changes in the condition of the property and economic enviromment between those dates. The Fair
value was determined using the market data approach in 2017 and 20016, Market data approach
mvolves the comparison of the land 1o these that are more or less Tocated within the vicinmity ol the
appraised property and are subject of reeent sales and olfermps. Adjustments were made to arrive
at the market vahwe by considering, the Jocation, size, shape. wtility, desirabilits and time clement,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value of investmenl propurtics
arc discussed 0 Notes 6 and 15

Gam on fair value changes which was recosnized i the statements of comprchensive ingome
amounted to PLT million and PLY million in 2007 and 2016, respectively. The carrving value of
investment properlics amounted 10 PAY 9 million as at June 30 2008 and Decemboer 31, 2007 £
Mote 6),

Assessrg hmpaivment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Company assesses impairment an nonlianeial
assels whenever events or changes in eircumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset
iy not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which counld iripper an
impairment review include the following:

e significant underperfirmance relative to expected historical or projected  future operating
results;

s significant changes i the manner of use of the acquired asscts or the stradepy for overall
business; or

«  significant negatve industry oF ceonomic trends

Mo mpairment fosses were recogmized in 2008 and 2017,



The carrying amount of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are as follows:
Ll = A

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2017

- Note {Unaudited) _(Audited)
lnvestment propertics i3 PEUET60,0060 Pl B 76,000
Equipmoent § 1,371,910 LAazs. 190
Other currenl assels 471672 201,350
Assessinng frgpeatrment of ADN Fisancial Assets. The Company treats AFS financial assels as

impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or
where other objective evidenee of impairment exists, The determination of what s “sipnifieant™
or “prolonged” requires judgment. The Company reats “sipnificant” gencrally as 20% or more
and “prolonged” as preater than 12 months for quoted cquity scourities. lo addition. the Compans
cevaluates other factors, including normal volatility in sharc price for quoted instruments and the

future cash flows and the discoun Factors for e st s,

No impairment losses were recognized in 2008 and 2017 The carrving amount of AFS financial
assets mmonnted o PO million as ot June 30, 2008 and December 31 267 see Note 7).

Assessing Realizabilite of Deferred Tov Assers. The Company reviews its defirred tax nssets al
cach reporting date and reduces the carrving amount to the extent that i is to lomger probable 1hat
sufficient Laxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred s assels to be
utilized,

The Company s unrccopnized deferred tax assets amounted (o P44.6 million and P36.2 million as
at December 310 2017 and 2016, respectively, Management believes that there will be no
sullicient future taxable profits against which these deferred tax assets can be wlilized.

C'ash
This account consists ol

June My, 2008 Docember 31, 20107

. _(Unzudited) {Audited)
Cash on hand 5,277 P 2
Cash in banks 20,690,303 1.7 04154
ISR . - P2.695670__ P1.720.23]

Cash in banks carn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates, Interest income Trom cash in banks
amotnted Lo P1L246 and P6.335 us at June 30, 2008 and 2017, respectively.

Receivables

This account consists of:

Mot June M, 2008 December 31, 20107

. : {Unaudited) (Audited)

Loans recervable 62,277,740 P62 277740
Advances to officers. cmplovees and

service providers 2,151,335 2126335

Rent reecivable § L 61,132 453,432

65,190,207 O BAR.O0T

Less allowance for impairment losses 62,404,075 624404073

e . L P2786,137  Pld4sion
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Loans receivable are related to the Company’s previous bank operations. The unimpaired balance
of loans reecivable amounting to P2.0 million is lel under an escrow fund as at June 30, 2018 and
December 31, 20107,

Advances to officers, employees and service providers reprosent uiliquidated, nomnterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of btle of propertics to PDIC and BDO. These are
liguidated upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted,

Maovements io allowance for impairment losses are as follows:
2018

Advanees io
olTicers, employecs

Loans veceivable _and service providers  Reot receivable Total

Eialance a1 beginning of
period o277, 740 P2 120,335 - F2A075
Prowtsion o = - o
Balance at end of period P60,277.740 F2.126,335 T PO2AIH0TS

The Company recovered some accounts written-off in prior vears amoumting to PO.O3 wllion and
P02 million in 2008 and 2017, respectively,

0,

Invesiment Propertics
Movements in this account are as follows:

June 30, 2008 December 31, M7

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Cost SR T e P38,020,000 P3S.020.000
Movement on fair value changes:
Balance at begimung of period 31,856,000 S00015, 000

Giam on i value change 1.741.000

31,856,000 31 856,000

Balance at end of pericad )
N , P69,876,000 P60.876,000

This account represents parcels of commercial land located in Legazpi City. Albay, which are held
for capital appreciation.

The fair values of the investment propertics as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are based on
valuations performed by aeeredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment
propertics were arrived al using the market data approach. In this approach, the value of the land
was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity,  This
requires the adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and
listings to a common denominator,  This was done by adjusting the differences between the
subjuel property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable.  The propertics used
as bases ol comparison are situated within the vicinity of the subjcel property, The comparison
was premised on the factors of location, stze, and shape of the lot, time element and others,

Market Data Approach

Significant Lnobservable loputs 27
Price per squarc moter POO00-P22857
Yalue adjustments S0l TA%

Rl



The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as fullows-

Price per Square Meier:  estimated value prevathing i the real estate market depending on the
location, arca, shape and time clement.

Value Adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approsimation to the
vestment propeety taking into account the location, size, architeclural features and cle

Market Data Approach involves the comparison of the land o those that are mare or less located
within the vicinity of the appraiscd property and ar subject of recent sales and offerings.
Adjustments were made 1o arrive at the market value by considering the Jocation. size. shape.
utility. desirability and time element

Seasitivity Analisis, The faciors considered in determming the fair value of the property are the
{a) location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood. (b size. () plvsica)
characleristics such as shape, topography and road frontage: and (d) time element,

7. AFS Financial Assets
The Company’s AFS financial asscts consist of a club share in Valley Goll & Countey Club. The
fair value of the club share is deterntined by reference to published price gualalions in an active
market.

Movements in this account are as follows:

June 30, 2008 December 31,2007

{(Unaudited) _(Audied)

Caost o - P00,000 200000
tinrealized gain (loss) on Taiv value changes

Balance at bepimning of period 100,000 J0.000

_ Fawvalechange : - 60000

Balance at end of period 1 b, (00 oo, io6

- N 300,000 R X

% Equipment
Movements in this account are as follows:

_dune 30, 2018 (Unaudited)
Computer Transportation

L - __Equipment  Eqaipment Total
Cast

Balance a1 beainning of peried Pa5.800 PLSTT000  P1,662.500
=L e T A
Balance at end of preriod 85,800 1,577,000 1,662,800
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at beginning of period 45,760 78BS0 124,610
Depreciation 8,580 157,704} 166,250
Balanee al end of period 54,340 136,550 290,890

Net Carrying Amount e T3LAGN P 340A450 1,371,910
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December 31, 2007 (Audited)
Compuler  Transporiation

e Equipmicn : Equipmen| '|'4:!_[:’L_|
Cost

Balance at beginning of vear BB P- PRS_800
Addions o sTIene 157700
Balance at end of vear - 53800 LS77.000 1.662.800
Acenmulated Depreciation

Balance al boginning of year 250000 - 24000
Depreciation 17,160 Ta 830 Ly 1111
Balance at end of vear 43760 T8 850 [2d.610
Net Carrying Amount Pibod — P1498,150 P18 190

9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
This secount consists of

June My 2008 December 31, 2017

(Unandiled) (Audited)
Liabiltics arising (rom the MOA 171,104,972 PL7L 104072
Drvidends pavable 10,985,443 L85 443
Rental deposits 5,972,042 AUT72.642
Aceroed expenses 1,763,356 1.703,356
Oihers } - . 3,224,957 3245232

PI193,051400  PIY3.O7] 645

e R 3 == £ T iy

Liabilities arising from the MOA pertain to estimated transfer tases and registration fees related to
the transfer of assets from its development bank operations 10 BDO/PDIC and other related
liabilitics. primarily from unremitted collection of assigned receivables and sale of foreclosed
propertics for the account of PDIC (sce Note 1) This account also ineludes provision for
prabable losses Lo cover estimmed losses from claims,  As allowed under PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liahilitics and Comingeni Avsets. cortain information i not disclosed until finad
settlement as it might prejudice the Campany’s position on the matter,

Dividends payable pertains 1o the Company's dividend for cumulative. nonparticipating.
nonvoling, redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared prior to the Company's
incurrence of deficn,

Rental deposits represent long-oulstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Company’s previous tenants.

Aceruod expenses pertain to acerual of outside services, profissiomal fees and association dues,
amoeng others, These are normally settted in the nest financial vear.

Others include statutory pavables and refunds of tenants related 1o the Compenn’s previous
operations. These are noninterest-bearing, unsecured and are normally seitled i the nest Nnancial
vear or upon demand



). Capital Stock
The movement in capital stock are as follows:

Junae b, 2HHH '||:_|:‘_|£_Iirmlj Pecember 31, 2007 CAwlinel)

SNumher of MWumlser of

— Shares At Sl Aanonm
Cvawvimon sdosvk - BL e waslye
Amlvsriecd A MR AT G BN 10 P2 EHACL 0143 10
Subaerited:
Balanee at hegimming of poiind U2 4 14 TN f b TUH. G Rl A T
Comtpvarnaoni ol prelereed
_Beothaon soeh, - - - -
|_:'|'I_!.|_J.I'IL'|." al vl ol perieud TG TIHLEIR G616 TR 20 g TN 2N
Prcfeveed stk - PLopar vl
_EE”]LIIJ.M:!ﬂ 2000 AN I:ZIINIIJJNHLFH’JIJ 2ANNLEM R TI0K) |"2,I1IIJIJ._1.||J!}_I'II'H:-
Lsaizcd s cantsrpnding;:
Fitlance ol Bepinning oF period 14306, 260 14,366, 2600 14,30, 200 1. 36, 20}
Cuomversion af prelerrad

I st sl . i . -
Dalane at cnied o period 14, g, 01 10 il 260F 14360, 2o b, i, 20k

TELGOES T FI1LGLETE Tl 5T 71 Lol w70
T — - ] e o

The Company has 1,600 and 1.603 stockholders as at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively,

The following summarizes the inlormation on the Company’s issued and subseribed shares as at
June 300, 201 %

MNumber of shares izsucd  Percentage of

_— o) and subseribed shares
Mon-public sharcholdings:

a.  Related partics STE TR s B221%
b, Aflihates, directors and officers 20035 RV
Pubdic sharcholdings | 2 502 625 17.79%,
Total e e TOD20RI6 _100.00%

The high and low trading prices of the Company’s stock are as follows:

Chuarter Hinh Lo
January to June 2018

First 1.68 .10
Second 62 - Loy
danuary 1o December 2017

First 1 26 Pt
Sccand .17 0.7
Third | &5 (142
Fourth 198 [

The preferred stock has the following salient features

a. Cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoling, redesmable and convertible at the option of the

Company,

b, Cash dividend rale initiallv at 4.50% per anom based on par value, which shall be
automatically adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full pavment of the subscription price,

¢ The Company may. at any time al its option. wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
preferred stock plus acerued dividends thereon, When such call for redemplion is made, the
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holders of the prefenied stock may opt to converl the preferred stock to common stock

On October 102000, the BOD approved an oplion 1o stockholders of preferred stock of extending
the maturily of sharcs for another five vears for a 2% additional dividend on the 9%, regular
dividend,

. Leases

On February 8, 2018, the Company eolered into cancellable lease agreement with MMDC for its
Tovota Hilux for a period of twenty one months from Janary 7, 2018 to October 7. 2009,

Rt income amouwted to P06 million and PO million in 20018 and 2007, Remt recervable
amounted o POE million and POS mullion as at Juoe 30, 2001% and December AL 27,

respechively (see Note 5).

Related rent expense amounted to PO.OG million and PO willion in 2018 and 2017, respechively,

. Related Party Transactions

Outstanding balances and transaction with related partics arc as follows:

Parent Company and Other Belated Pariy

Aot of Trmpssction . { IuIsl.-|||-.l:|r!|_u'v|_§:'!1:mcu
Matire ol Jume 30 2008 HHT June 30, 2008 Kl
s = o AUmandited)  iAudited)  (Unaudited)  (Awdiled )

Advanees o related pariics
Lty ader conmmoen

Centrel Alvimnees (PL253002 1% 2 S0 AR TSIt O L e TRR 1411
Dot Parent Company Advanues 200 THML RNy RANIEIRTTH (13,850, tH; RN
Mot rude

el

Parent Company feu P P 20927 - -

Outstanding balances are unsceured. noninterest-bearing. pavable on demand and settlement
oceurs in cash, The Company has not made any provision for impairment losses relating o the
amounts owed by related parlics. This asscssment is undertaken ar each reporting date by tking
intar consideration the fimancial position of the related party and the market at which the relaced
Pty operales,

On December 22, 2005, the Company entered o 3 managemncnl agreoment with the Parent
Company to oversee and supervise the Company s business matters until December 31 L2017,

Key Management Personnel
The Company has no key management personnel, lis aceounting and admimstrative functions are
provided by a related party at no cost 1o the Company

14



13, Commitments and Contingencies

a. Io the normal course of the Company's prior operations, there are ouistanding commitments,
pendmg Titigations and contingent liabilities which are not refleeted in the fnancial statements.
The Company does nol ant icipate significant losses as a resull of these transactions.

b, As discussed in Note 1. under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDOMPDIC, the Company agreed to teansfor its assets and liabilitics Trom ity development
banking operations. The Company agreed 1o hold BDO free from any comtingent claims, labor
and ninority issucs and concerns arising from related assets and liabilitics still managed by e
Company until these are assumed by BDO. Further, the Company agreed o indemnify BDO
against losses, claims and dumages BIXO may soffer in the event such contmgent clwms. kalor
and minorily issues affeet BDO's rights under the MOA.

The Company has aceounted for separately, assots from it development banking operation
pursuant to the MOA. It still has in ats possession titles ol real estate properiies from is
development banking operations with an aggreoate fair value of P327.8 million and P342 4
million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  Morcover, the Company has cash of
PI3.9 mallion as at December 31, 2017 arising from the proceeds of sale of a properly,

¢ The Company is a defendant i lepal actions arising Trom normal business  activitics,
Management belioves that these actions are without merit or that the ullimate liability, i any,
resulting from these will not materially affeet the Compamy's fitaneial position and results of
aperations

d. On July 20, 2018, the Company has entered info a Compromise Agrecment with the Bangko
Sentral ug Pilipinas for the full and final setdement of its case amoumtbing to P2OU nalion,

14, Loss Per Share
The basic and diluted loss per share were compuled as follows:

Joree 30, 2008 Decombor 31,2017

g 4 3 (Unandited) {(Audited)

Net loss (P2,828,145) (P28.435.686)

Less dividend nghts of preferred stack for
the year

LAR1.67TI

Loss altributable to common stockhalders - (P2.828,145 } {P3O017.35T
Divided by weighted averase number
of common stock " s TO0,298.610 _TB0.298.616

L ArRond) (P0.04)

Lass per sharg - basic and diluted
R &

L

The conversion feature of the Compam’s preferred stock has potential antdilmive eficel
(.. it deercases Toss per share). Therefore. diluted loss per sharce s cqual to basic loss per share,

15, Financial Risk h’iﬁnagﬂneni l]'l;jcnliws and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instraments comprise of cash i banks, receivables {exeluding
advances 1o ofTicers, cmplonvees and service providers). duc from related partics. AFS financial
assels, acerued expenses and other current labilitics (exeluding statiton panables),

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit nisk and liguidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing the risks,



Credit Risk

Credn nisk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation.  The Company’s exposure to credil nisk arises primarly
from cash in banks and reccivables (excluding advances o officers. cmplovees and service
providers) and due from related partics. The carrving amount of the financial asscets represent the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The aging analvses of financial assets as at June 30, 2012 and December 3 12007 are as follows:

June 30 2008 (Unandited)
Neither Past __ Past Due But Not Impaired

I Mue Less Than Pusi Do s
L : Tnpraived 3} Dry's 3160 Dy Impaired Tutal
Cash i bonths 20,690,343 - - P- FI0,690,393
Ruveiymlles® 2,701,132 - - Gl 277,740 63,058,872
Audvances rebied parlics 40H6,93% = . - 4, 06,038
AVE fimwin] jrasels SURL - - ] - 3t dhewii
__ P2T.798,463 : P PGOTILG  PBA76,203

Avefding v i agficers, ernp ey o o peovidees g e 12 7 e,

Meither Pl - Past e Bt Mt Tnipainedd

I By Lazss T (W TR
Lingnaira W Diys =60 Dy Ltairea ol
Ll in Twinka L B B R [T 1 - 11T 25
Roreivahlost 2451 u%2 g . ), 3 A0 G273 1072
Aalvitnes o relided portios 12 20000 & = . [ el R AT
AS Bianeial assers E AN P S = KLY
PIGBREREG v P PALITTIN  PIGh00n

Mt el o onfivers, CREEICS a0 preaeloes st fo 0T i

Credit Quality of Financial Assers The eredit quality of the Company’s finaneial assets arc biing
mamged by vsing internal eredit ratings sueh as high srade and standard prade,

High grade - pertaing to connterparty whao is not expected by the Company to defaull in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal,

Standard grade - include financial assets that are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require some  reminder follow-ups to obtain settlement from  ihe
COnnterxiny.

The Company has assessed the eredil quality of financial assets that are neither pasl due nor
impaired as hiph prade.

Reccivables are classificd as substandard grade since these are reecivables from 1hird partics. The
Company asscssed these reccivables as uncollectible and provided allowance For impairment
losses amaunting to P60 million as at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to setile or meet its financial
obligations when they fall due,  The Company aims to mainiain flexibility by maintaiming
sullicient cash to meot all forcsceable eash necds,

The Company also maintains a balance between comtinuily of funding and Nexibilies. The policy
of the Company is to Tirst exhaust lines avarlable from afliliated compames before bocal bank lines
are availed of. The Company seeks (o manage its liquid funds through eash planning on a weekly
basis. The Company uses historical figures and expericnces and forceasts from its cash recuipls
and disbursements.  As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company reeularly evaluates jis

s



projected and actual eash flows. 1 alsa continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets
for opportunitics (o pursue fund raising activitics,

As-at June 3tk 2008 and December 31, 2017, acerued expenscs and ather current liabilitics
[excluding statutory pavables) amounting o #1931 million arc generally due and demandable,

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of the Compamy s assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and the correspondmy fair value hicrarchy

June 3k, 2008 (Unaudited) December 20, 2007 { Audited)

Carrying Carrying

Amonnt Fair Vitlue Aot [7air ‘-.-’ﬂl}_@_ i
Financial Assely
Cish PLHI5,6T0 FHLHISGTO PL72HL2A| P70
Receivables® 2.761,132 2. 1,132 2A53 932 2453032
Advanees fo related partics J 6,958 4,040,938 [ 2,430 060 [ 2,420 40000
AFS fimocia] nssels KITTRITI .]Uﬂ,i{[!!l MO SIIUJH?{L
G I PRTMSTI0 FITROITH PIOSILIGT  PIOILIGT

Momfimancin Assel

Iestment propertics o TOOTRON0  PGONTGNN POYTGO0N  PGY.RTO N

Financial Liabilities
Accrned expenses and oller currcni

lisbsiliies®® PIO3NSL256  PI93051,236 FIUS051230  PI93050230
D o parent company 13,850,000 RER TR % Sl

031,236

PA6.931236  P206.931236 P19 __PIOR05L206

Stvetdrins inrnce foaffers, eagoneey o seee peoers
R sy naielos

Crrvent Fingneial Assets and Liabilies. "The carrving amounts of cash. receivables {excluding
advimees from officers, emplovees and service providers). due from related partics and acerucd
expenses and other current hiabilitics fexcluding statutory pavables) approsimate their far values
duc to the shortierm nature and maturities of the transactions.  The fair value measurement of
cirrent fimancial assets and liabilites is chssiticd as Level 3 {Siznificant unobscrvable inputs),

AN fvestment. The Fair valug of this financial asset is determined by reference 1o quoted market
bid prices al the close of business at the reporting date. The fair value messurement of AFS
rvestment is classitied as Level 1 {(Quoted in an active market).

Tnvestment Properties. The fair value of investment propertics is determined based on valuations
performed by aceredied independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment propertics
were arrived al using the market data approach.  The fair value measurement of investment
propertics is classificd as Level 3 (Significant unobscrvable inputs).

Capital Manage ment

The primary abjective of the Company s capital management is o safeguard the Company’s
ability to cantinue its operations as a going concern and Lo maximize sharcholder value.  The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
ceanotmic condittons.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adyust
dividend payment 1o sharcholders, retum capital 1o sharcholders, or issue new stock. No clunaes
were made i the objectives, policies or processes for the vears ended December 31, 2017 2016
and 2003,




